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4540 South County Trail
Patricia M. Anderson

Charlestown
Treasurer Rhode Island, 02813
PAnderson@CharlestownRI.org Phone (401) 364-1235

Fax (401) 364-1238
TOWN OF CHARLESTQOWN

December 23, 2015

To the Honorable Town Council:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Town of Charlestown is hereby submitted for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, in accordance with the Town Charter, Section C-72. Responsibility for
the accuracy of data, and completeness of the presentation, including disclosures, rests with
management. To the best of our knowledge, the information contained herein is accurate and
representative of the financial position of the Town of Charlestown. It clearly reflects the operation of
the Town as measured by the financial activity of its various funds.

This document provides a summary of related costs for providing services to its citizenry, as well as
changes in fund balance and financial resources for the year ended June 30, 2015. The Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report is a joint effort between Town Management and our auditing firm, Cayer
Caccia, LLP Certified Public Accountants.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in three sections. The introductory section is
not audited and includes this letter of transmittal; an organizational chart and a listing of the Town of
Charlestown's principal elected and appointed officials. The financial section includes the Government-
wide Financial Statements, the Statement of Net Position, Statement of Activities, Business Activities
statements and all required supplemental information including the Management Discussion and
Analysis as required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34.

A single audit section relating to federal financial assistance is not required for the 2015 fiscal year. In
1996, the US Office of Management and Budget issued Circular A-133 rescinding Circular A-128 as it
related to Audits of State and Local Governments. The Single Audit applies in years that the Town of
Charlestown expends $500,000 or more in federal funds.

Copies of this report are on file in the Town Clerk's Office and the Cross Mills Public Library for public
inspection. Individuals wishing to obtain a copy may do so by submitting a written request to the
Treasurer's Office at 4540 South County Trail, Charlestown, Rhode Island 02813. This report is
forwarded to the Rhode Island Auditor General's Office, as prescribed by state law, and to state, local
and other miscellaneous agencies such as the Town’s financial advisors.

In accordance with Federai Law and U.S. Department of Agticulture policy, this institution is prohibited from discrimination on the
basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age or disability. (Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of
discrimination, write USDA Director, Office of Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue SW, Washington, DC 20250-9410, or call
800.795.3272 (voice) or 202.720.6382 (TDD). This institution is an equal opportunity provider and employer.



Community Description

The Town of Charlestown, incorporated on August 22, 1738, is a seaside community located in the
southwest portion of Rhode Island. It encompasses thirty-six square miles of land, six miles of inland
water and approximately six miles of coastline along Block Island Sound. The Town is a physically
diverse community with flourishing beach colonies, unique village centers, and large tracts of open
space. The Town is a perennial vacation and tourist location offering exceptional swimming, camping
and fishing opportunities. Consequently, between the months of May to September the Town's
population swells to more than twenty thousand, including seasonal inhabitants.

Cherlestown’s year-round population, according to the year 2010 census was 7,827, a decrease of 32
from the year 2000. In 1970, year-round residents totaled 3,200, 1980 totaled 4,800, an increase of
1,600 residents, In 1990, the population of year-round residents had grown to 6,478, increasing another
1,678, or 35%. The 2000 census showed an increase of 21% to a total year-round resident count of
7,851. In 2010, the population dropped to 7,827 or a decrease of 0.3%.

The Town of Charlestown has operated under a Council-Administrator government since November
1980. Pursuant to the Charter and subject only to the limitations imposed by the State Constitution, all
powers of the Town, except those vested in the Financial Town Meeting, are vested in the Town
Council, the governing body. The Town Council determines policies, enacts laws, and appoints the
Town Administrator. The Town Administrator executes the laws, and controls the government under
the authority of the Town Council. The Town Council consists of five members, elected at large. They
serve a term of two years and thereafter until their successors are elected and qualified.

Major Initiatives
The government's staff and committees, following specific direction of the Governing Council and
Administrator, were involved in a variety of projects throughout the year,

The Governing Council identifies needs to meet citizen’s demands for services and to safeguard the
environment with conformity to applicable local, state and federal law. Following is a list -of
undertakings initiated, or completed, during the 2014-2015 fiscal year:

The renovation of the council chambers was completed with the installation of the carpeting
and a new sound system.

The land evidence software continues to be updated through ACS,

The Town has continued to work on crack sealing the Town’s roads. Rubberized asphalt chip
seal and asphalt stone seal was completed on designated roads.

The Town has continued to replace the DP'W vehicles on a regular cycle with the purchase of a
new dump truck. A new box van was also purchased for use by the Parks and Recreation
department and DPW.



On May 1, 2015 the town was accepted into the CRS Program by the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA). The CRS Program is a voluntary program that recognizes
communities for floodplain management activities that exceed the minimum National Flood
Insurance Program (NFIP) standards. Property owners in the Town of Charlestown will receive
discounts on their Flood Insurance Premiums based on the “Class” rating in the CRS Program.
The Town has achieved a Class 7 rating, the first in the State of Rhode Island and the second
community to receive such a great rating in the entire northeast. The Class 7 rating qualifies all
property owners with a “standard” flood insurance policy to a 15% discount on their flood
insurance premiums, Currently, there are 794 Flood Insurance Policies in effect in the Town of
Charlestown. The Class 7 rating will save property owners in Charlestown a total of $173,850
per year.

The GIS Manager and the Wastewater Manager/Environmental Scientist prepared an
application for U.S. Department of Interior restoration Grant for resiliency programs along the
coastline. The Town of Charlestown was awarded $3,250,000. The project will restore and
enhance approximately 30 acres of degraded salt marsh habitat within Ninigret Pond barrier
and coastal lagoon complex by the placement and dispersal of dredged material on the marsh
surface to increase surface elevations, Increasing marsh surface elevations and replanting the
restored areas will in turn enhance salt marsh vegetation, increasing the lifespan and resiliency
of the marsh complex from future coastal storms and increased rates of sea level rise induced
by climate change. This will allow the marsh to continue to function as a storm surge buffer
and flood storage area. It will also preserve and extend the marsh’s many functions and values
that support the tourism, recreation, fishing and boating industries that are crucial to the
economic wellbeing of the surrounding communities. Funds may also be used to assess
opportunities for additional projects in two other ponds. The state will provide $423,650 in
matching funds for this project.

Rising sea levels are degrading the barrier-marsh complex and negatively affecting many of the
species that rely on the marsh habitat. Marshes are not only essential for wildlife, but also
provide a significant natural buffer between the open ocean development around the Salt
Ponds. The marshlands, as a buffer and the wildlife that rely on the marshes as well as the
beach and the Coastal Ponds are arguably one of the most important economic draws for the
Town of Charlestown. This grant provides a means to rebuild the degraded marsh areas with
material provided by the necessary and required maintenance dredging of the entrapped
sediments from the Charlestown Breachway into Ninigret pond, thus protecting and enhancing
these important habitats.

Dredging of the Charlestown Breachway’s existing sedimentation basin and relief channel was
last completed in March of 2012 and is scheduled for maintenance dredging in the Spring 2017.
Based on recent (2014) data collected by the Town’s GIS Office, the two existing maintenance
areas are at approximately capacity and will need dredging sooner than 2017 in order to limit
sedimentation and impairment of the pond. Furthermore, given the rapid accumulation of
material in the sedimentation basin, a secondary sedimentation basin has been proposed and
approved.
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Dredging and placement of dredged material on the beach within the intertidal zone, which was
conducted during previous maintenance dredging activities has an estimated cost of $1.5
million.

The Parks and Recreation Department was cited as the “Department of the Year” for making
significant and exemplary contributions that enhance the lives of the community members,
The Director received the Walter A. Henry Leadership Award in recognition of dedicated
service and leadership in her role in making significant improvements to park facilities and
recreation programs,

The Senior Center continues to increase its membership. The Town has continued to update
the center by adding new blinds. A new generator and ice maker will added soon. The fitness
and wellness programs and usage of the center continue to grow. Over the past year, changes
to the senior nutrition program have been made across the state shifting towards a Café style
program with more diverse menu options, catering to the older and younger seniors.

The Town’s Onsite-Wastewater Management Office continued to successfully manage its
program in accordance with Town Ordinance. To protect Charlestown’s groundwater (our only
drinking water source) and our surface water bodies, the Town inspected 968 septic systems
and identified 22 failing systems. Forty-two Notices of Intent to Enforce and/or Notices of
Violation were issued. Eighty-two new or replacement septic systems were installed including
the replacement of twenty-two polluting cesspools and twenty-two hazardous Tailing septic
systems. The Town’s cesspool phase-out program has now successfully removed 99.9% of all
polluting cesspools in Charlestown and has provided the foundation for the State of Rhode
Island’s statewide cesspool removal program.

The Town Office of Wastewater Management brought twenty-one on-site wastewater treatment
related Violations before the Charlestown Municipal Court and closed forty-one case files for
compliance. Additionally, the Town sampled over thirty drinking water wells in densely
developed areas of Charlestown for analysis for harmful nutrients and bacteria. The On-site
Wastewater Manager was an author of the successful $3.25 Million grant for Salt Pond
Dredging and Resiliency and obtained an additional $300,000 to be utilized as Low Interest
Loans for the Community Septic Loan Program.

The Town’s Onsite Wastewater Management Program is widely recognized as a model for
local groundwater protection programs and continues to be a benchmark for state and
municipal programs.

The Town continued to manage all of the Town facilities at the lowest possible cost to the

taxpayers of Charlestown. The Town maintained sound capital investment in new equipment
and improved Town facilities as allotted for within the 2015 budget.
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On July 1, 2000 the town opened a newly constructed Residential Collection Center that
replaced the previous Landfill Facility. The Town then initiated the capping and covering of
the closed facility. In fiscal year 2001, $435,000 was allocated for this closure from the
unreserved General Fund in lieu of bonding the project. On June 30, 2006, the capping of the
landfill was at a standstill due to a problem found by RIDEM with the covering used to cap the
landfill. The Town had entered into a Consent Agreement with RIDEM whercby the Town
agreed to remove a portion of the initial covering and replace it with appropriate material. As
of June 30, 2009, the Town had performed the proper remediation and was determined by
RIDEM to be in compliance with its order. On June 20, 2008, RIDEM issued a Release and
Discharge of Violation to finalize the closure of the landfill,

The Town continued to maintain an excellent working relationship with all units representing
employees within the structure of government for the Town. Bargaining agreements with all of
the Town’s unions and the professional management group expire as of June 30, 2018.

Charlestown owes much of its identity to the unparalleled caliber of its recreational virtues. The Town
boasts of a vast catalog of federal, state, local and non-profit facilities intended to both preserve and
provide public access to open space.

The Town owns and operates two public beaches; a one-hundred and seventy-two acre multi-faceted
park complete with professional bicycle course, walking trails, basketball and tennis courts, fresh and
salt water access, softball and soccer fields, a playground and festival area. The festival area
accommodates seasonal family-oriented activities. Other significant facilities include:

US Fish & Wildlife Refuge Area
Burlingame State Park

Ninigret Conservation Area
Quonochontaug Breachway
Kimball Wildlife Refuge
Wicklund and Columbia Parks
Cross Mills Library

School House Pond

South Farm

PER e e o p

Community Development

Charlestown is very mindful of ifs current physical and economic assets and recognizes that various
outstanding needs must be met. Consequently, the Town attempts to address issues that it feels are vital
to its future,. The Town has a substantial investment in maintaining affordable housing in the
community. Since 1996 Charlestown has been awarded more than $1.3 million through the Community
Development Block Grant Program (CDBG), a federally funded program. A portion of each of the
grants, distributed through the Community Development Consortium of East Greenwich, is allocated‘to
housing rehabilitation for low and moderate-income families. The Town continues to contract with the
Consortium to handle all aspects of these grants, except the writing thereof,
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Mr. Geoffrey Marchant, who heads the Consortium, is also in charge of the Shannock Village
Revitalization project between the Towns of Charlestown and Richmond. This project has been
awarded approximately $1.2 million since 2000. Additionally, Mr. Marchant is coordinating the
improvement and expansion of the Shannock Water District for Charlestown and Richmond. Mr.
Marchant has also secured $431,000 TEA-21 enhancement funding for the “Columbia Heights Housing
& Streetscape Plan,” Additional federal funds of approximately $1.8 million were obtained for use by
the Shannock Water District. Both of these projects are being worked on in conjunction with each other.
Mr. Marchant has also received approximately $4.4 million dollars from CDBG-DR for the
“Churchwoods” affordable housing project.

Financial Management

The Town's Management is responsible for maintaining and establishing internal controls designed to
ensure that the government’s assets are protected from loss or misuse and to provide financial
accountability that conforms to accepted accounting principles. An internal control structure provides
reasonable accountability for the everyday operation of the government and its various departments,
Reasonable accountability recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control does not exceed the benefit; and (2)
valuation of costs and benefits requires judgment on the part of management.

The Treasurer's department manages all funds for the Town of Charlestown. The General Fund,
primarily funded with tax dollars and miscellaneous departmental revenues, includes the operation of all
departments within the Town except for the two enterprise funds that are self-funded through an
established fee structure. Financial statements are issued monthly to the goveming Council and
management and are on record in the Treasurer's office for public inspection. Cash and investments are
monitored weekly and reported monthly. The unassigned fund balance, which the Town has maintained
over several years, cnables a smooth transition from one fiscal year to another, as cash flow is
maintained at a leve! sufficient for governmental operation before tax collections. The Town has many
special revenue funds in which revenue deposited is restricted for particular expenditures.

Management also maintains extensive budgetary controls to ensure that the monies allocated through tax
dollars are expended in the manner for which they were intended.

Risk Management

During 2015 the Town experienced minimal losses on insurance claims and the Town anticipates a
similar situation in 2016. The Town has taken steps to maintain adequate and cost effective insurance
coverage for all related municipal services and facilities. Our insurance carrier reviews all Town
facilities each year so that we minimize exposure to any risk of liability. In addition, the Town is subject
to an annual review by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) to detect any
existing or potential hazards to municipal employees or citizens while on Town property.



In July of 1991 the Town entered into an insurance contract with Rhode Island Imterlocal Risk
Management Trust for all of its insurence needs. The Trust is a member:owned and operated insurance
alternative; it has 58 member munieipalities, schools, and public agencies. The Trust monitors and
evaluates existing and developing risk exposure for all the municipalities it covers. Through the Trust,
local governments jointly self-insure risks arising from worker's compensation and liability claims, The
Town's member deductible per ocourrence is $2,500 except for- Public Officials' Liability of $5,000 per
occurrence. Worker's compensation coverage has no deductible.

Independent Audit

State law requires an annual audit of Town finances by an independent certified public accountant. The
accounting firm of Cayer Caceia, LLP was awarded the bid to conduct the Town's audit: for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2014 through 2016 in response to the Town’s request for proposal issued in 2014,

Sincerely,

Patricia M. Anderson
Treasurer
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gg Cayer Caccia

Gerard R. Cayer
CPA, MST

Mark V, Caccia

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT CPA, MST

Donna T. Caccia
CPA, MST, CFP™

To the Honorable Town Council
Charlestown, Rhode Island

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of
Charlestown, Rhode Island, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

Management's Responéibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are fres from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error. .

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether-the financial statements are-free from
maferial misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. " The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financiai statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate fo provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Cayer Caccia, LLP | Certified Public Accountants and Business Consujtants
931 Jefferson Boulevard, Suite 2007, Warwick, RI 02886 | Phone: {(401) 732-8900. | Fax: (401) 732-8520 | www.cayercaccia.com



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Charlestown, Rhode Island, as of June 30,
2015, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2015, the Town of Charlestown, Rhode Island
adopted new accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, as amended by GASB Statement No. 71. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, historical pension and other post-employment benefit information,
and budgetary' comparison information on pages 4 through 17 and 73 through 83 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operationat,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquires of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquires, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town of Charlestown, Rhode Island's basic financial statements. The
introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and Tax Collector's
Annual Report are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and Tax Collector's Annual
Report are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements, and Tax Collector's Annual Report are fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the basic financial statements as a whole.



Other information (Continued)

The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 23, 2015, on our consideration of the Town of Charlestown, Rhode Island's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance, That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of
Charlestown, Rhode Island's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Cﬁa-,mCaw;:.,LLP

December 23, 2015






Town of Charlestown, Rhode Island

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Town of Charlestown’s Management Discussion and Analysis i designed to assist
the reader in focusing on significant issues, It provides an overview of the Town’s financial
activity and changes in financial position for the current year only. Since the Management
Discussion and Analysis (M D & A) is designed to focus on the current year’s activities,
resulting changes and cumently known facts, it should be read in conjunction with the
Transmittal Letter and the Financial Statements (beginning on page 18).

Effective July 1, 2014, the Town of Charlestown implemented GASB Statement No. 68,
which established new financial reporting requirements for state and local governments which
provide their employees with pension benefits, including additional note disclosures and required
supplementary information. See Note 2 for additional explanation,

Highlights
Financial Highlights

The Town’s net position increased by $1,692,493 (or 7.6%). Governmental net position
increased by $1,715,911, (or 7.8%), while the business-type activities net position decreased by
$23,418, (or 9.8%). In 2014, governmental net position decreased by $20,682 (or 0.09%), while
the business-type activities net position decreased by $43,006, (or 15.3%).

Governmental activities revenues for the year ending June 30, 2015 totaled $27,164,628
including charges for services at $1,189,305, operating grants and contributions at $2,299,513,
capital grants and contributions at $239,957 with the balance of revenue from property taxes,
revenue sharing, investment interest, and contributions not restricted to specific programs of
$23,435,853,

Business-type activities revenues for the year ending June 30, 2015 totaled $222,645
including charges for services of $201,898, investment income of $497, gain on sale of capital
assets of $5,250, and transfers in of $15,000,

Governmental fund expenditures for the fiscal year totaled $25,448,717. Business-type
activities expenses for the fiscal year totaled $246,063.

On the GAAP basis, expenditures and other financing uses were $25,672,245 for the
general fund; $2,128,505 for the non-major governmental funds; and $246,063 for business-type
funds.



Use of the Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net
Position and the Statement of Activities (on pages 18 through 20) provide information about the
activities of the Town as a whole and present a longer-term view of the Town’s finances. Fund
financial statements start on page 21. For governmental activities, these statements tell how
these services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund
financial statements also report the Town’s operations in more detail than the government-wide
statements by providing information about the Town’s most significant funds. The remaining
statements provide financial information about activities for which the Town acts solely as a
trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the government.

The financial statement focus is on both the Town as a whole and its government-wide
funds, as well as its business type activities. All these perspectives allow the user to address
relevant questions, broaden the basis for comparison, and enhance the accountability.

Reporting the Town as a whole:

One of the most important questions asked about Town finances is “Is the Town as a
whole better or worse financially as a result of this year’s activities™? The Statement of Net
Position and Statement of Activities reports information in a way that gives the reader the answer
to the above question. Statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual method of
accounting, similar to that of private business. All current revenues and expenses are taken into
account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the Town’s net position and changes therein. The Town’s
net position is the difference between actual assets and liabilities against said assets. This
measures the Town’s financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or decrease in
net position are an indicator of whether the financial health of the Town is improving or
declining. Other non-financial factors to consider are changes in the Town’s property tax base
and the condition of town roads and buildings when assessing the overall financial picture. In the
Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities the Town is divided into two sections:
Governmental and Business-type (Enterprise) activities,

Significant Funds

The analysis of the Town’s most significant fund begins on page 21. The Fund Financial
Staternents provide detailed information on the general fund, not the Town as a whole. Some
funds are required to be established by State law or by bond covenants. However, the Town
Council mainly through the Financial Town Referendum establishes other finds to help control
and manage money for a particular purpose or project. Individual funds track costs more closely
than in the general everyday use of funds (i.e. road paving, engineering) or to show that all legal
responsibilities for using certain grants, and other miscellaneous funds donated or sent to the
Town through other sources than property taxes.



Proprietary funds are those that the Town charges its customers for a service it provides —
such as the Collection Center where taxpayers deliver their rubbish and recyclables or Coastal
Ponds for the registration and use of pond moorings for ocean front property owners. Proprietary
funds are like little businesses and are accounted for individually in order to know whether the
funding for the service is adequate for the service provided.

The Town may be a trustee for certain types of funds or a fiduciary for certain activities.
The Town is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their
intended purpose. At the present time the Town has only one fiduciary fund for the other post-
employment benefit trust fund.
Town as a Whole

Analysis as a Whole

Included below is a condensed Statement of Net Position for the Town. The condensed
format allows the reader to view the overall financial position of the Town.

Governments Wide Statements

Statement of Net Position
As of June 30:
Governmental Business-Type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
{as restated) (as rostated)
Current and Other Assets $10,340,139 § 7,646,728 $ 55,608 $116,484 $ 10,395,747 $ 7,763,212
Capital Assets 25,038,639 24,625,388 178,216 191 649 25216755 24,717,037
Total Assets 35,378,678 32172116 233,824 308,133 35612502 32,480,249
Deferred Qutflows of Resources 569,898 496,383 0 0 569,698 496,383
Curmrent Liabilities 2,248 224 1,769,425 9,653 61,153 2,257,877 1,830,578
Long Term Liabilities 8,960,765 8,797,120 8,636 8,027 8,569 401 8,805,147
Total Liabllities 11,208,989 10,566,645 18,280 69,180 11,227,278 10,635,725
Deferred Inflows of Resources 821,722 0 0 0 921,722 0
Net Investment in Capital Assets 19,516,088 20,588,580 178,216 191,649 19,694,304 20,780,229
Restricted for Cther Purpose 2,688,346 3,301,808 10,000 10,000 2,598,346 3,311,806
Unrestricted 1613431 (1,788,432) 27,319 37304 1640750 (1,751,128)
Total Net Position $23,817,865 $22,101,954 $215,535 $238,053 $24.033,400 $22,340,907

Net Position equals Total Assets plus Deferred Outflows of Resources less Totai Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of
Resources. The Town is showing a prior period adjustment of beginming net position as of July 1, 2013 of
$3,615,305 to recognize the net pension Ligbility.



Revenue:

Program Revenue:

Charges for services

Operating Grants & Contributions

Capital Grants & Contributions
Total Program Revenue

General Revenue:
Property Tax
Gain ori sale of Capital Asset

Unrestricted Investment Eamings
Contributions not restricted to specific
programs

Total General Revenue
Total Revenue

Expenses:

General Govemment

Public Safety

Public Works

Education .

Parks & Recreation

Public Health & Asst

Community Development

Other

Interest on Long Term Debt
Total Expenses -

Excess (deficiency) Of Revenue Over
Expenditures Before Transfers

Transfers
Change in Net Position

Net Position Beginning, as Restated
Net Position Ending

Changes in Net Position

For fiscal Year Ended
June 30:
Governmental Business-Type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
(as restated) {as restated)
$ 1188305 $ 1,151,230 $201,808 $222,099 $ 1391203 § 1,373,338
2,299,513 2,160,991 2,286,513 2,160,991
230,057 97,866 238,957 97,866
3,728,775 3,410,006 201,808 222 099 3,930,673 3,632,195
23,312,505 22,624,301 23,312,505 22,824,301
5,250 5,250
8,348 5,697 497 413 8,845 6,110
115,000 38,830 115,000 38,830
23,435,853 22 868,828 5,747 413 23441,600 22,889 241
27164628 26278924 207645 222512 27,372,273 26,501,436
1,669,844 2,671,813 1,669,844 2,671,813
2,824,862 2,786,913 2,824,862 2,786,913
2,191,097 2,149,227 2,191,007 2,149,227
14,336,661 14,669,090 14,336,661 14,669,080
638,160 686,068 638,160 686,068
420,171 412147 420,171 412,147
632,544 87,302 632,544 87,302
2,660,173 2,645,781 246,063 265518 2,796,236 2,811,299
170,205 149,801 170,206 149,901
25433717 26,258,242 248,063 265,518 25,679,780 26,523,760
1,730,911 20,682 {38,418) (43,006) 1,692,493 {(22,324)
(15,000) 15,000
1,715,211 20682 (23,418} (43,008) 1,692,493 (22,324)
221019564 22,081,272 238,953 281,959 22,340,907 22,363,231
$23817,865 $22,101,054 § 215,535 §238,953 § 24,033,400 $ 22 340,907

This is the thirteenth year Charlestown is reporting fixed asséts in its financials and
infrastructure additions are included. Infrastructure, roads, culverts, bridges, etc. were inventoried,
valued and reported in the financials for fiscal year 2015, The following pie charts delineate the
preceding chart by percentages. Sometimes it is easier to envision the totals when looking at it as pie

slices.
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Normal Impaets:
There are six basic transactions that affect comparability of Net Position.

1. Net results of activities — will increase or decrease current and
unrestricted

2, Borrowing of Capital — increases current assets and long term
debt

3. Spending Borrowed Proceeds on New Capital — reduces

current assets and increases capital. Also, a second impact
occurs — increase in the net investment in capital assets and an
increase in related net debt — note the investment in capital
assets will not change the capital asset net of debt,

4. Spending of non-borrowed Current Assets on New Capital
will (a) reduce current assets and increase capital assets and (b)

reduce unrestricted net assets and increase invested in capital
assets, net of debt,

5. Principal Payment on Debt — a) reduce current assets and long-
term debt and (b) reduce unrestricted assets and increase
invested capital assets, net of debt.

6. Reduction of Assets through Depreciation — reduces capital
assets and invested in capital assets, net of debt.

Changes in pet- position of the Town’s activities as a whole (includes
governmental and business-type activities) was $1,692,493 and $(22,324) for fiscal year
2015 and 2014, respectively, resulting from the difference between expenses and
revenues. For fiscal year 2015, expenses net of their pertinent revenues were
$21,749,107, while revenue not attributed to any activity in the government were
$23,441,600, therefore netting an increase of $1,692,493 in net position. For fiscal year
2014, expenses net of their pertinent revenues was $22,891,565, while revenues not
attributed to any activity in the government were $22,869,241, therefore netting an
decrease of $22,324 in net position,

Business-type Activities:

The change in net position for the business-type activities for fiscal year 2015 and
2014 was $(23,418) and $(43,006), respectively.

12



Town’s Funds:

General Fund & Other Governmental funds:

The Town implemented the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions
(GASB 54) in fiscal year 2011. GASB 54 establishes criteria for classifying fund
balances into specifically defined classifications and clarifies the definitions for
governmental funds, GASB 54 defines the following five categories of fund balance:

Nonspendable — items that cannot be spent because they are not in a
spendable form, or legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact.

Restricted — items that are restricted by external parties or imposed by
grants, laws or legislation.

Committed — items that have been committed by formal action by the
entity’s highest level of decision-making authority.

Assigned ~ items that have been allocated by committee action where
the government’s intent is to use the funds for a specific purpose.,

Unassigned — items that have no restrictions placed on them.

At the end of June 2015, the general fund balance sheet showed a fund balance of
$6,097,765. This figure results from all assets allocated to the fund less its liabilities, as
presented on page 21. Of this total, $532,978 was nonspendable for tax sale property and
prepaid expenditures, $590,894 was restricted mainly for employee severance benefits
and general government expenditures, and $4,973,893 was unassigned. The Town was
also required to show any other major funds which are determined by criteria listed by
the GASB. There were no additional major funds for fiscal year 2015. Other
governmental funds had a fund balance of $1,901,604 of which $1,540 was nonspendable
for perpetual care, $1,861,234 was restricted mainly for capital projects, community
development, and general government expenditures, $139,718 was commitied mainly for
parks and recreation and $(100,888) was unassigned. The total fund balance for the
aforementioned funds is $7,999,369. See Schedule B-1.

The Town maintains certain funds that have been reclassified to the Town

General Fund under GASB 54. The ending fund balance of these funds was $591,201 at
June 30, 2015.

13



At the end of June 2014, the general fund balance sheet showed a fund balance of
$5,071,526. This figure results from all assets allocated to the fund less its liabilities. Of
this total, $459,855 was nonspendable for tax sale property and prepaid expenditures,
$702,120 was restricted mainly for general government expenditures and employee
severance benefits and $3,909,551 was unassigned. The Town was also required to show
any other major funds which are determined by criteria listed by the GASB. The other
major fund of the Town for fiscal year 2014 was the Open Space Acquisition Fund. At
the end of June 2014, the Open Space Acquisition showed a fund deficit of $(2,014,846).
Other governmental funds had a fund balance of $2,622,285 of which $1,540 was
nonspendable for perpetual care, $2,360,836 was restricted mainly for education and
capital projects, $260,116 was committed for parks and recreation and $(207) was
unassigned. The total fund balance for the aforementioned funds is $5,678,965.

The Town maintains certain funds that have been reclassified to the Town
General Fund under GASB 54. The ending fund balance of these funds was $637,898 at
June 30, 2014,

Business-type Activities:

The business-type activities for the Town are the Residential Collection Center
and the Coastal Pond Management. These two entities combined had total net position of
$215,535 at June 30, 2015, of which $178,216 is the net investment in capital assets,
$10,000 is restricted and $27,319 is unrestricted. At June 30, 2014, these two entities
combined had total net position of $238,953 of which $191,649 was the net investment in
capital assets, $10,000 was restricted and $37,304 was unrestricted.

Required Supplemental Information

In addition to this MD&A and the basic financial statements, this report also
presents certain Required Supplemental Information. For the Town of Charlestown, this
Required Supplemental Information includes the Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the
General Fund that can be found on “Schedule E-4” on page 76. The presentation under
GASB 34 requires disclosure of both the original and final budget. The original budget is
the first complete appropriated budget. The final budget is the original budget adjusted
by all reserves, transfers, allocations, supplemental appropriations and other legally
authorized legislative and executive changes applicable to the fiscal year.

Analysis of Significant Budget Variations in the General Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the general fund revenues exceeded budget
projections by $224,931, or 0.9%. The general fund expenditures were less than the
budget by $912,405, or 3.4%. This resulted in a $1,137,336 budgetary surplus in the
general fund for the year ending June 30, 2015.

14



The most significant revenue variances are the tax collection and interest on
delinquent taxes in the amount of $204,812. The most significant expense variances
were savings in the Public Works department for highway and public building and
grounds. The Town also received $96,476 from the RI Interlocal Risk Management Trust
for reimbursement of Injured on Duty wages for a police officer who had been out for
almost three years. In addition, the Town budgeted $275,000 for the principal payments
for the open space, affordable housing and the beach pavilion bonds. The open space
bond is new and the affordable housing and the beach pavilion bonds were refunded.
They were structured so no principal payment was due in FY2015, There were also
savings of $87,762 on employee insurance and benefits.

For the year ended June 30, 2014, the general fund revenues exceeded budget
projections by $1,455,391 or 5.0%. The general fund expenditures were greater than the
budget by $1,282,411, or 4.4%. This resulted in a $172,980 budgetary surplus in the
general fund for the year ended June 30, 2014.

The most significant revenue variances were the Incentive Aid and the Local
Roads Programs. The Governor had included these in his budget but the Local Roads
Program was not included in the final state budget. This accounted for a variance in an
amount of $257,230. The Town also recognized bond premiums in the amount of
$43,712. The most significant expense variances were an over expenditure of $26,970 in
central services due mostly to advertising savings of $38,295 for employee insurance and
benefits and $104,119 in legal expenses. In addition, $100,000 was not spent in fiscal
year 2014 because the first principal payments for the affordable housing and the beach
pavilion bonds was not due until fiscal year 2015. There were also savings of $41,982 in
the police department and $58,185 in the public works department.

Capital Assets and Long-Term Debt

Capital Assets

The Town of Charlestown’s net investment in capital assets for its governmental
and business-type activities as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 amounted to $25.2 and $24.7
million, respectively (net of accumulated depreciation). This net investment in capital
assets includes construction-in-progress, land, buildings and improvements, motor
vehicles, equipment and infrastructure.

The presentation below for the current fiscal year lists the major categories of
capital assets for governmental activities and business-type activities. Infrastructure
assets, assets that are long-lived and can be preserved for a significantly greater number
of years than most capital assets and that normally are stationary in nature such as streets,
sidewalks and curbing are subject to different rules under the standards established by
GASB 34.

15



Capital Assets at June 30:

(In Millions)
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Totals
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Motor Vehicles $30 $30 $30 §$30
Equipment 0.9 0.9 $0.2 $0.2 1.1 1.1
Infrastructure 46.4 4.5 46.4 44.5
Buildings and Improvements 88 8.7 0.1 0.1 8.9 8.8
Land and Land Improvements 9.6 9.6 0.2 0.2 9.8 9.8
Construction-in-progress 0.5 0.9 0.5 0.9
Total Assets 69.2 67.6 0.5 0.5 69.7 68.1
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (442) (43.1) (0.3) 03) 445 @34
Net Capital Assets $25.0 $24.5 $0.2 $02  $252 $24.7

The Town’s investment in capital assets for its govemmental and business-type
activities as of June 30, 2015 was $69.7 million less accumulated depreciation of $44.5
million for a net investment in capital assets of $25.2 million.

The Town’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of June 30, 2014 was $68.1 million less accumulated depreciation of $43.4
million for a net investment in cepital assets of $24.7 million.

Major capital asset additions during the current fiscal year included the following:

$ 1,935,762 for Infrastructure

$ 154,353 for Vehicles

$ 59,034 for Building Improvements
$ 53,186 for Equipment

Additional information on the Town’s capital assets can be found on Note 13 on
page 63 - 64 of this report.

16



Long-Term Debt

As of June 30, 2015, the Town had total long-term liabilities of $6.6 million. Of
that, $5.3 million related to bonded debt guaranteed by the Town’s assets, $0.1 related to
landfill monitoring costs; $1.0 million related to compensated absences; and $0.2 million
related to leases payable,

As of June 30, 2014, the Town had total long-term liabilities of $4.9 million. Of
that, $3.5 million related to bonded debt guaranteed by the Town’s assets, $0.1 related to
landfill monitoring costs; $0.9 million related to compensated absences; and $0.4 million
related to leases payable.

The business-type activities had long-term liabilities $8,636 at June 30, 2015.
This is related to compensated absences.

The business-type activities had long-term liabilities $8,027 at June 30, 2014,
This is related to compensated absences.

The Town’s bond ratings are as follows:

*  Moody’s: Aa2

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors,
and creditors with a general overview of the Town's finances and to show the Town's
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need
additional information, contact the Office of the Treasurer at the Town of Charlestown,
4540 South County Trail, Charlestown, RI 02813.
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TOWN OF CHARLESTOWN. RHODE ISLAND

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2015
Governmental Business-type
Actlvities Activities Total
ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalenis $ 6,845,977 $ 575,605 $ 7.421,682
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 15,832 15,832
Investments . 500 500
Receivables:
Taxes, net 705,262 705,262
Other receivables 18,117 8,181 26,278
Internal balances 547,090 (547,080)
Due from other governments 1,495,862 1,485,862
Prepaid expenses 10,086 3,000 13,086
Tax sale property 224 612 224,612
Total current assets 9,847 486 55,608 9,903,094
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable 9,830,663 99,500 9,930,163
Depreciable, net 15,207,876 78,716 15,286,592
Net other post-employment benefit asset 492,653 482 653
Total noncurrent assets 25,531,192 178,216 25,709,408
TOTAL ASSETS 35,378,678 233,824 35,612,502
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES: .
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 559,611 559,611
Deferred expense on refunding bonds 10,287 0 10,287
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 569,808 0 569,898
LIABILITIES:
Current liabliities:
Accounts payable 300,714 08,653 409,367
Retainage payable 2,500 2,500
Accrued interest 23,784 23,784
Due to other governments 24,230 24,230
Curmrent portion of long-term debt 685,829 685,829
Unearned revenue 1,055,329 1,085,329
Other liabilities 56,838 56,838
Total current liabilities 2,248.224 9,653 2,257,877
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt, net’ 5,920,440 8,636 5,929,076
Net pension liability 3,040,325 3,040,325
Total noncurrent liabilities 8,960,765 8,636 8,868,401
TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,208,989 18,289 11,227,278
(CONTINUED)

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.




STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Pension deferrals - 921,722 921,722
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES , 921,722 0 921,722
NET POSITION: . -
Net investment in capital assets 19,516,088 178,216 19,694,304
Restricted - nonexpendable 236,218 10,000 246,218
Restricted for:
Community development 328,339 328,339
Education 181,425 181,425
Capital projects 1,025,615 1,025,615
Employee severance benefits 417,519 417,519
Special purposes 489,230 499,230
Unrestricted - 1,613,431 27,319 1,640,750
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 23,817,865 $ 215535 $ 24,033,400
(CONCLUDED)

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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"BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
- JUNE 30, 2015
Other Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents § 6445272 $ 400,705 $§ 6845977
Investments 500 500
Receivables:
Taxes, net 705,262 705,262
Other 18,117 18,117
Due from:
Other funds 1,044,366 1,681,435 2,725,801
Other governments 130,437 1,365,425 1,495,862
Prepaid expenditures 308,366 308,366
Tax sale property 224 612 . 224 612
TOTAL ASSETS =$ 8,876,432 $ 3,448,065 $ 12!324.497
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND
AND FUND BALANCES:
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 339,259 $ 60455 $ 399,714
Retainage payable 2,500 2,500
Due to:
Other funds 1,685,126 493,585 2,178,711
Other governments 24,230 24,230
Uneamned revenues 122,246 933,083 1,055,329
QOther liabiiities 56,838 56,838
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,170,861 1,546,461 3,717,322
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 607,806 0 607,806
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES 607,806 0 607,806
FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable 532,978 1,640 534,518
Restricted 590,894 1,861,234 2,452,128
Committed 139,718 139,718
Unassigned 4,973,893 (100,888) 4,873,005
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 6,097,765 1,801,604 7,999,368
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES $ 8876432 $ 3,448,065 $ 12,324,497

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

21



TOWN OF CHARLESTOWN. RHODE ISLAND

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET (B-1)
TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (A-1)
JUNE 30, 2015

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position differ becatse:
Total Fund Balance (B-1)

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not
reported in the funds.

Governmental capital assets 89,271,300
Less: accumulated depreciation (44,232,761)

Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year are deferred outflows of resources on
the Statement of Net Position.

Net other post-employment benefit (OPEB) asset Is not reported in the governmental funds. This
amount represents accumulated plan contributions in excess of annual OPEB costs.

Some liabiliies, including bonds payable and related deferred outflows of resources, are not due
and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds,

Governmental bonds payable {5,220,000)
Prepayment on bonds payable (298,300)
Leases payable (229,820}
Premium {81,715)
Current year amortization 9,084

Deferred expense on refunding bonds 11,671

Current year amortization {1,284)
Compensated absences (966,818)
Landfill closure and post-closure care costs (117,000)

Net pension liability
Pension related deferrals

Certain deferred infiows of resources in governmental funds are susceptible to full accrual on the
entity-wide statements.
Accrued interest payable is recorded in governmental activities, bu_t_ is not recarded in the funds,

Total Net Position {A-1)

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

$ 7,990,369

25,038,539

659,611

492,653

(6,894,282)
(3,040,325)

(921,722)

607,806

(23,784)

$ 23,817,865

(CONCLUDED)
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

8-2

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Other Total
General Governmental Govermnmental
Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES:
General property taxes $ 23,395,601 $ 23,395,601
intergovernmental 2,073,261. $ 427,345 2,500,606
Departmental 1,115,496 1,115,456
Investment income 7.874 474 8,348
Other 51,808 112,548 164,357
TOTAL REVENUES 26,644,040 540,368 27,184,408
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government 1,560,364 86,406 1,636,770
Public safety 2,390,053 12,751 2,402 804
Public works 1,534,358 1,534,358
Education 14,312,928 14,312,928
Parks and recreation 528,581 10,472 539,053
Public health and assistance © 420,171 420,171
Community development 632,544 832,644
Other .2,879,684 2,879,684
Debt Service:
Pringipal 160,000 160,000
Interest and other costs " 305,027 19,157 324,184
Capital:
Capital outlay 422 169 1,177,638 1,589,808
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 24,503,335 1,938,969 26,442,304
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 2,140,705 (4,398,601) 742,104
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 54,444 882,302 936,746
Transfers out (1,162,210) (188,538) (1,351,746)
Proceeds from bond issuance 2,000,000 2,000,000
Landfill monitoring (6,700) (6,700)
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (1,114,466) 2,692,766 1,578,300
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 1,028,239 1,294,165 2,320,404
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,071,626 807,439 5,678,965
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 6,007,765 $ 1,801,604 $ 7,899,369

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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JTOWN QF GHARLESTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (B-2}
TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (A-2)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds (B-2):

Govermnmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over thelr estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital cutlays exceeded depreciation
in the current period.

Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year are not included in the Statement
of Activities

The governmental funds report OPEB contributions as expenditures when paid. However, In
the Statement of Activities, differences between OPEB plan contributions and OPEB costs
for the year are reported as an OPEB asset.

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds,
while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources
of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. This
amount is the net effect of these differences.

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do nof provide current financial resources are not
reported as revenues in governmental funds.

Adjustrnént'to accrudd intereist payable related fo long-term liabifities which is required to be
recorded for government-wide financial statement presentation.

Pension expense reported in the Statement of Activities does not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, is not reported as an expenditure in governmental funds.

Some expenses repofted in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities (A-2)

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

2,320,404

513,151

559,611

101,838

(1,733,477)

(134,780)

(14,094)

(346,742)

450,000
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TQWN QF CHARLESTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015
Residential Coastal Pond
Collection Center _Management Totals
ASSETS:

Current Assets: )
Cash and cash equivalents $ 379,027 3 196,578 $- 575605
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 15,032 15,032
Receivables, net 8,161 8,161
Prepaid expenses 3,000 3,000

Total Current Assets 380,188 212,510 602,698

Noncurrent Assets:

Net capital assets 131,977 46,239 178,216

Total Noncurrent Assets 1 31,977 46,239 178,216
TOTAL ASSETS 522,165 258,749 780,914
LIABILITIES:

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 6,109 3,544 9,653

Due to other funds 408,489 138,601 547,090

Total Current Liabilities -414,598 142,145 556,743

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Accrued compensated absences 8,636 8,636
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 8,636 0 8,836
TOTAL LIABILITIES 423,234 142 145 565,379

NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital assets 131,977 486,239 178,216

Restricted for endowment 10,000 10,000

Unrestricted {33,046) 60,365 27,319

TOTAL NET POSITION $ 98,931 $ 116,604 $ 215,535

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.




JTOWN OF CHARLESTOWN, RHODE ISLAND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Resldential Coastal Pond
. Collection Center _Management Totals
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for usage and service $ 146,658 $ 55,240 $ 201,898
Total Operating Revenues 148,658 55,240 201,898
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Operations 85,708 17,325 103,033
Personnef . 95,691 33,906 129,597
Deprecigtion 7,993 5,440 13,433
Total Operating Expenses 188,382 56,671 246,063
OPERATING LOSS (42,734) (1,431) (44,165)
NONOPERATING REVENUES:
Gain on sale of capital asset 5,250 5,250
Investment income 311 186 497
Total Nonoperating Revenues ) 311 5,436 5,747
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS ' (42,423) 4,005 {38,418)
TRANSFERS IN __15,000 0 15,000
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (27,423) 4,005 {23,418)
TOTAL NET POSITION - BEGINNING 126,354 112,599 238,953
TOTAL NET POSITION - ENDING $ 98,931 $ 118,604 $§ 215,535

m

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Residential Coastal Pond

Collection Center _Management Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from custormners $ 160,173 $ 55,240 $ 205413
Cash paid to suppliers (87,759) (68,775) (156,534)
Cash paid to employees (95,082) (33,9086) {128,988)
Net cash used for operating activitles (32,668) (47.441) {80,109)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfers from General Fund . 15,000 15,000
Increase in due to other funds 77,283 35,012 113,195
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 92,283 35,912 128,195
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from sale of capital asset 5,250 5,250
Interest on investments 311 186 497
Net cash provided by investing activities - 311 5,436 5,747
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 59,926 (6,093) 53,833
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 319,101 218,603 537,704
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 379,027 $ 212510 $ 591537
== Al N
Reconciliation of operating loss fo net cash used for
operating activities:
Operating loss $ (42,734) $ (1,431) $ (44,165)
Adjustments to reconcile:
Depreciation - 7,993 5,440 13,433
Decrease in receivables, net 3,515 3,515
Increase in prepaid expenses (2,000) {2,000)
Decrease in accounts payable (51) (51,450) (51,501)
Increase in accrued compensated absences 609 609
Net cash used for operating activities '$  (32,668) $ (47,441) $  (80,109)

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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TQWN OF CHARLESTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015
Other
Post-Employment
Benefit
Trust Fund
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 114,162
Investments, at fair value 3,710,631
Total assets 3,824 783
LIABILITIES 0
NET POSITION:
Held in frust for other post-employment benefits $ 3,824,783

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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TOWN OF CHARLESTOWN. RHODE ISLAND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

ADDITIONS:

Contributions:
Employer contributions
Total contributions

Investment Income:
Interest and dividends
Net realized gains on sale of investments
Net decrease in fair value of investments
Total investment income

Total additions
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits
Administrative expenses
Total deductions
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION - BEGINNING

NET POSITION - ENDING

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

Other
Post-Empioyment
Benefit
Trust Fund

$ 400,000
400,000

90,178
161,046
66,234
185,990
585,990

0

0

0

585,890
3,238,793

$ 3,824,783
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JOWN OF CHARLESTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015

1‘

REPORTING ENTITY

In accordance with the requirements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, The Financial
Reporting Entity, the accompanying basic financial statements present the Town of Charlestown ({the primary
government).

The Town complies with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). GAAP includes all
relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. Proprietary funds also apply
the same principles. The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting policies
are discussed in subsequent subsections of this Note.

Primary Government

The Town s a municipal corporation govemned by a Council/Town Administrator form of government
with a five-member Town Council headed by a Council President. The Town provides the following services
as authorized by its charter: public safety, highway and streets, sanitation, health and social services, culture-
recreation, public improvements, planning, zoning and inspection, and general administrative services.

In evaluating how to define the government for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting
entity was made through the application of GASB criteria. Under GASB, the financial reporting entity includes
both the primary govemment and all of its component units. GASB defines component units as legally
separate entities that meet any one of the following three tests:

Test 1 - The primary government appoints the voting majority of the board of the potential component

unit and;
* is able to impose its will on the potential component unit and/or
N is in a relationship of financial benefit or burden with the

potential component unit;
Test 2 - The potential component unit is fiscally dependent upon the primary government; or

Test 3 - The financial statements would be misleading if data from the potential component unit were
not included.

Potential component unit

* Chariho Regional School District. Education services are provided o the Town by
the Chariho School District. The District serves the Towns of Charlestown, Richmond and
Hopkinton, and is a separate legal entlly from its member Towns with no financial
interdependency. The District has a separately elected governing authority, and a separate
designation of management. In addition, the Town has no abliity to significantly influence
operations and no accountability over fiscal matters of the School District. As a result, the
Town has no oversight responsibilities and the School District's separate financial statements
are not included herein.

For the purpose of these financial statements, the financial reporting entity includes only the Town of
Charlestown, Rhode Island. No other organizations satisfy the criteria necessary to be categorized as
component units under the requirements of GASB. The potential component unit discussed above has not
been included within the Town’s reporting entity due to the Town's lack of financial accountablity and inability

- fo significantly influence the operations of the Chariho Regional School District.

(CONTINUED)
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JOWN OF CHARLESTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Recently Issued Accounting Standards
The Town implemented the following pronouncements for the year ended June 30, 2015,

— GASB Statement No. 69 - Government Combinations and Disposals of Government
Operations.

The adoption of this Statement did not have an impact on the Town's financial position or resuits of
operations.

The Town also implemented GASB Statement No. 68 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and GASB Statement No. 71 - Pension Transition for
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68.
During fiscal year 2015, the Town implemented the revised requirements which established new financial
reporting requirements for state and local governments which provide their employees with pension bénefits,
including additional note disclosures and required supplementary information. In addition, GASB Statement
No. 68 requires a state or local government employer to recognize a net pension liabiiity and changes in the
net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources which arise from other
types of events related to pensions. During the transition year, as permitted, beginning balances for deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will not be reported, except for deferred outflows of
resources related to contributions made after the measurement date of the beginning net pension liability
which is required to be reported by GASB Statement No. 71. The adoption of these statements decreased the
July 1, 2014 net position by $3,615,305 as described in Note 12.

The Town will adopt the following new accounting pronouncements in future years:

— GASB Statement No. 72 - Fair Value Measurement and Application, effective for the
Town's fiscal year ending June 20, 2016.

—» GASB Statement No. 73 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related
Assets that are not Within the Scope of GASB Statement No. 68, and Amendments to
Certain Provisions of GASB Statements No. 67 and 68, effective for the Town's fiscal
year ending June 30, 2016.

—» GASB Statement No. 74 - Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other.
than Pension Plans, sffective for the Town's fiscal year ending June 30, 2017.

— GASB Statement No. 75 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Posternployment:
Benefits Other than Pensions, effective for the Town's fiscal year ending June 30, 2018,

—» GASB Statement No. 76 - The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
for State and Local Governments, effective for the Town's fiscal year ending June 30,
2016,

~» GASB Statement No. 77 - Tax Abatement Disclosures, effective for the Town's fiscal
year ending June 30, 2017. '

Management is in the process of determining the impact of these pronouncements on the Town's
financial statemeants.

(CONTINUED)
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JOWN OF CHARLESTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Presentation
Govermnment-Wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the reporting
govemment as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds and component
units that are fiduciary in nature. The statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities.
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other
nonexchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external
parties for goods or services. Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34 in
regards to interfund activities, recsivables and payables.

Fund Financlal Statements

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds each of which is considered to
be separate accounting entities. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing
accounts which constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are
organized into three major categories: govemmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major
funds within the governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if It is the primary operating
fund of the Town or meets the following criteria:

a) Total assets, liabllities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual
governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for
all funds of that category or type and
b) Total assets, liablliles, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual
govemmental fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total
for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.
The funds of the financial reporting entity are described beiow:
Governmental Funds
General Fund
The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Town and is always classified as a major fund. It
is used to account for all activities except those legally or administratively required to be accounted for in other
funds.
clal Revenus Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted to expenditures for certain purposes.

Capital Project Funds

Capital Project Funds are used to account for resources restricted for the acquisition or construction
of specific capital projects or items.

(CONTINUED)
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IOWN OF CHARLESTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Presentation {Continued)

Permanent Funds

Permanent Funds are used to account for assets held by the Town pursuant to a trust agreement.
The principal portion of these funds must remain Intact, but the eamnings may be used to achieve the
objectives of the fund.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public.
These activities are financed primarily by user charges and the measurement of financial activity focuses on
net income measurement similar to the private sector. Operating revenues of the Proprietary Funds consist of
customerftaxpayer charges for uses and services and certain other miscellaneous revenues. All other
revenues of the Proprietary Funds are considered non-operating sources of revenue.

Fiduciary Funds (Not included in government-wide statements)

Other Post-Employment Begnefit Trust Funds

Other post-employment benefit trust funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for
the payment of benefits other than pensions. The Other Post-Employment Benefit Trust Fund accumulates
resources for future retiree health benefits for eligible retirees.

Agency Funds
Agency funds account for assets held by the Town in a purely custodial capacity. Since agency funds

are custodial in nature (i.e. assets equal liabilities), they do not involve the measurement of results of
operations. The Town did not have any agency funds at June 30, 2015,
Major and Non-Major Funds

The funds are further classified as major or non-major as fallows:

Fund Brief Degeription

Major:

General; See above for description

Proprietary: Residential Collection Center: accounts for the operation and

maintenance of the Residential Collection Center.

Coastal Pond Management: accounts for the operation of the
Coastal Pond Management Fund.

(CONTINUED)
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LOWN OF CHARLESTOWN. RHODE ISLAND
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Major and Non-Mgjor Funds (Continued)

Non-Major:

Special Revenue;

Capital Projects:

Permanent.

Measurement Focus

Senior Community Activities, Police Grants — JAG, MEDS Grant - R.I.
Dept. of Health, Frisbee Golf Course, School impact Fees, Friends of
Ninigret, Hazard Mitigation, Operation Blue Riptide, Flagpole
Gardens Accessible Playground, Animal Spaying/Neutering, Ninigret
Park Fund, Bicentennial Fund, Affordable Housing Acquisitions,
FEMA, Developer Bond Deposits, Open Space Fees, Charlestown
Community Garden, Naval Airfield Memorial, Police Forfeiture,
Municipal Planning, Affordable Houslng Initiatives, Birthday
Committee, CDBG - Disaster Recovery, Commission on Disabilities,
Community Development Block Grant, Police Evidence Property,
Historical and Vital Records, Ninigret Dog Park, Roof Drainage
System Performance Bond, Taquonck's Treasures, Comprehensive
Planning Grant and-Special Donations.

Open Space Acquisitions, Klondike Road, Asphalt Resurfacing,
Stormwater Elimination Project, RI DEM Ninigret Park, Town Capital
Maintenance Fund, Columbia Heights Streetscape Enhancement,
DPW Road Engineering, Beach Pavilions, Web Based GIS, and
Pond and Beach Preservation.

Zenis Ellls Trust and Cemetery Fund

On the government-wide Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities both govemnmental
and business-like activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined in

item (b) below.

In the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources” measurement focus or the
“economic resources” measurement focus is used as appropriate;

(a) All governmental funds utilize & "current financial resources” measurement focus. Only
current financial assets and lizbilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their
operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources
during a given perlod. These funds use fund balance as their measure of avallable spendable
financial resources at the end of the period. The Town considers property taxes as aveilable
if they are collected within 60 days after year end.

(b) All proprietary funds utilize an "economic resources™ measurement focus. The accounting
objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of net income, financial position
and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or nonicurrent) assoclated with their
activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net position.

{c) Agency funds are not involved in the measurement of results of operations; therefore,
measurement focus is not applicable to them.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF CHARLESTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Accounting

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities both governmental and
business-like activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when eamed and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or
economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and
exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when "measurable and
available”. Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. Expenditures (including
capital outiay) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation bond
principal and interest which are reported when due.

All proprietary funds and agency funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis
of accounting, revenues are recognized when eamed and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred
or economic asset used.

Amounts reported as program revénues include charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services or privileges provided and operating grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

During fiscal year 2015, the Town impiemented GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions - an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. The revised requirements establish new
financial reporting requirements for state and local governments, which provide their employees with pension
benafits, including additional note disclosures and required supplementary information. In addition, GASB
Statement No. 68 requires a state or local government employer to recognize a net pension liability and
changes in the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources which
arise from other types of events related to pensions. During the transition year, as permitted, beginning
balances for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will not be reported, except for
deferred outflows of resources related to contributions made after the measurement date of the beginning net
pensicn liability which is required to be reported by GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date.

Accounts Receivable

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year end and not
yet received. Allowances for uncoftectible accounts receivable are based on historical trends and the periodic
aging of accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts totaled $431,700 for property taxes.
Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include property taxes and intergovernmental grants
and aid. Business-type activities report service fees as its major receivables.

In the fund financial statements, materia! receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals
such as properly taxes and grants and other similar intergovemnmental revenues since they are usually both
measurabie and available. Nonexchange transactions collectible but not available are deferred In the fund
financial statements in accordance with modified accrual, but not deferred in the government-wide financial
statements in accordance with the accrual basis. Proprietary fund material receivables consist of all revenues
earned at year-end and not yet received. Allowances for uncoftectible receivables are based upon historical
trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable.

{CONTINUED)
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JOWN OF CHARLESTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, Is employed
in certain governmental funds. Encumbrances do not constitute expenditures or liabilities under generally
accepted accounting principles. The Town did not have any encumbrances as of June 30, 2015.

Investments

Investments are stated at fair value. For purposes of the statements of cash flows, all highly liquid
investments with & maturity of three months or less when purchased are considered o be cash equivalents.
The Town’s cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, money market accounts,
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition,
Substantially all of the Town's cash and cash equivalents are held in public deposit institutions.

Short-term Interfund Recelvables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as “due from other funds” or
“due to other funds® on the balance sheet.

Advances to Other Funds

Noncurrent portiong of long-term interfund loan receivables are reported as advances and are offset
equally by a fund balance reserve account which indicates that they do not constitute expendable available
financial resources and, therefore, are not available for appropriation,

Interfund Transfers

Legally authorized transfers are treated as interfund transfers and are included in the results of
operations of both Governmental and Proprietary Funds.

Long-Term Debt

In the govemmental-wide financial statements, long-term debt obligations are reported as liabiiities in
the statement of net position. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.
Bond premiums, included in long-term debt, are amortized using the effective interest method over the
respective life of the associated bond issues. Amortization of bond premiums, which are charged against
interest expense, totaled $9,084 for fiscal year 2015,

Bond issuance costs are recorded as operating expenses when incured. The implementation of
GASB Statement No. 65 resulted in the write-off of bond issuance costs as of July 1, 2013,

Prepaid bond insurance costs are reported as an asset and are recognized as an expense over the

duration of the related debt using the straight-line method. The Town did not have any prepaid bond
insurance costs at June 30, 2015.
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Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, in the
period issued. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on
debt issuances are reported as other financing sources and discounts on debt issuances are reporied as other
financing uses. Issuance costs, even if withheld from the actual net proceeds received, are reported as
expenditures. Interest is reported as an expenditure in the period in which the related payment is made,

The tfotal bond premiums at June 30, 2015 were $89,281, while the accumulated amortization was
$16,650.

Amount Deferred on Refunding

During periods of declining interest rates, the Town has refunded certain bond obligations reducing
aggregate debt service. The difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the
refunded bonds is recorded as an amount deferred on refunding. The deferred amount on refunding is
amortized over the remaining life of the refunded bonds, or the life of the new bonds, whichever is shorter.
The amortization amount is a component of interest on bonds, and the unamortized balances are recorded as
deferred outflows or inflows on the government-wide Statement of Net Position.

Deferred inflows and Outflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the government-wide statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Town currently has two
items which qualify for reporting in this category. contributions subsequent to the measurement date for
pensions which will be applied to the net pension liability in the next fiscal year and the deferred charges on
refunding.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resourcess,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future perlod(s) and so will nof be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that ttme. The Town has two items which qualify for reporting in this
category. On the Statement of Net Position, the Town reports the deferral of pension expense that results
from the implementation of GASB Statement No. 68. On the governmenta! funds Balance Sheet, under the
modified accrual basis of accounting, the Town reports unavailable revenue from one source: property taxes.
This amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amount becomes
available.

Materials and Supplies

The costs of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when purchased.

Prepaid items
Prepaid items are accounted for under the allocation method whereby a prepaid asset is established

at the date of payment and subsequently amortized over the accounting periods expected to benefit from the
initial payment.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

The accounting treatment for property, plant and equipment (capital assets) depends on whether the
assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported
in the government-wide or fund financial statements.

Government-Wide Statements

In the govemment-wide financiat statements, ali capital assets are valued at historical cost, or
estimated historical cost if actual is unavaltable, except for donated capital assets, which are recorded
at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Infrastructure, such as streets and drainage
systems, are capltalized. The capitaiization threshold Is any Individual item with a total cost equal to or
greater than $5,000.

Prior to July 1, 2002, governmental funds Infrastructure assets were not capitalized. During
fiscal year 2007, the Town conducted a detailed study of all infrastructure assets In order to have a
complete inventory of its infrastructure assets and be in compliance with GASB Statement No. 34. As
of June 30, 2007, the government-wide financial statements include all infrastructure assets in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 34.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an- aliocated expense in the
Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position.
Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straightdine method of
depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

Classes eful
Buildings and improvements..............ccenvevemmirisssnsimmsseiennes 15 - 50 years
Land improvements ............cc.ocoiieenecniecrseeeesesarassesenns 10 - 16 years
EQUIPMBNLE........ceceiieii et e s snassn s sene s ssna s se 3 - 30 years
VERICIES.........o ettt sesesssssnsess s ene 5- 15 years
INFrASIUCIUNE .....oveecrnerer et emeseenseeneerena 20 - 50 years

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the govemmental fund upon acquisition. Capital
assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for the same as In the government-wide
statements,

Interfund Transactions

Interfund activity within and among the funds of the Town have been classified and reported as
follows:

Reciprocal interfund activities:

. Interfund loans are reported as interfund receivables in the lending fund and interfund payables
In borrower funds.

Non-reciprocal interfund activities:

o Interfund transfers are reported in governmental funds as other financing uses in the funds
making transfers and as other financing sources In the funds receiving transfers. In propristary
funds, transfers are reported after nonoperating revenues and expenses.
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Compensated Absences

The Town's policy is to recognize the cost of sick leave and vacation pay in govemmental funds at the
time payments are made. Vested sick leave and accumuiated vacation pay for govemmental fund employees
at June 30, 2015 amounted to $966,818. The amount of eamed but unpaid vacation and sick leave relating to
governmental fund employees is recorded as long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements.
The liability is calculated at the rate of pay in effect at June 30, 20165.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability (asset}, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) of Rhode Island and additions
to/deductions from MERS' fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by MERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair
value.

Budgeis

Town ordinances require an annual budget for the General Fund. The practices used in the
preparation of the budget differ in certain respects from the presentation of the actual results of operations
prepared in accordance with GAAP. The actual results of operations, for purposes of the Statement of
Revenues and Expenditures (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) Budget and Actual - General Fund has been
adjusted to a basis consistent with the Town's budget. Transfers of appropriations between departments
require the approval of the Town Council. All annual budget appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The adjusiments necessary to reconcile actual revenues and expenditures reported on a budgetary
basis to actual revenues and expenditures reported in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles are as follows:

Revenues Expenditures
and Transfers and Transfers
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Bailance (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) Budget and Actual (E-4).. $26,711,076 $25,573,740
Reappropriated fund balance...........cc.oceeiereeecsecrnmenecireecsressnsmensessaee (64,400)
Activity of funds classified with the General Fund for purposes of
GASB Statement NO. B4...........c.cceeeceecervecernererceeenene s rassrvonns 51,808 98,505
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
BaIANCE (B-2) ......cc it sesssases s esse st sesas e ses b sne 226698484  $25672 245
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and fiabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actuaf results
couid differ from those estimates.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Equity Classifications

Government-Wide Statements

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

(a) Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of
any bonds, morigages, notes, or other bomrowings that are aftributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

(b) Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use
sither by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or 2) law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

(c) Unrestricted net position - All other net position that does not meet the definition of
"restricted” or "net investment in capital assets", '

Fund Statements

Govemmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balances of the governmental
funds are reported separately within ciassifications based on a hierarchy of the constraints placed on
the use of those resources. The classifications are based on the relative strength of the constraints
that control how the specific amounts can be spent. The classifications are nonspendable, restricted,
and unrestricted, which includes commitied, assigned, and unassigned fund balance classifications.

Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance ciassification inciudes amounts that cannot be
spent because they are not expected to be converted to cash, or legally or contractually required to he
maintained intact.

Restricted - Fund balance is reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use of resources
are either externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or
laws or regulations of other governments or is imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

Committed - The committed fund balance classification Includes amounts that can be used only for
the specific purposes imposed by formal action of the Town Council. Those committed amounts
cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Town Council removes or changes the specified use
by taking the same type of action it employed to previously commit those accounts.

Assigned - Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the Town
for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. In
govemmental funds other than the General Fund, assigned fund balance represents the remaining
amount that is not restricted or committed. In the Genheral Fund, assigned amounts represent
intended uses established by the Town Council or a management official delegated that authority by
formal Town Council action.

(CONTINUED)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Equity Classifications (Continued)
Fund Statements (Continued

Unassigned - Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund and
includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other governmental
funds, the unassigned classification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting from
overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted, commitied, or assigned.

Net Position Flow Assumption

The Town occasionally funds outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted
resources, To determine the amounts to be reported as restricted and unrestricted net position in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order
in which the resources are considered to be applied. it is the Town's policy to use restricted resources first,
then unrestricted as they are needed.

Fund Balance Flow Assumption

The Town may fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted (total
committed, assigned and unassigned fund balances) resources. To calculate the amounts to report as
restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial stetements a
flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. it is the
Town's policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components
of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the
same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund
balance is applied last.

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance and the Government-Wide Statement of Activities

The govermental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes
reconciiation between net changes In fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in net position of
govermmental activitios as reported in the government-wide statement of activiies. One element of that
reconciliation explains that "Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures, However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense". The details of this $513,151 difference are as follows:

Capital OUHaYS ...ttt § 1,801,319
Capital disposifIOnS ...t e ersesssans {139,113)
Depreciation expense, Net ...........cocceevvceinneriericvsinrcreeeserenns (1,149,055)
Net adfustment..........cccrreor et s eeen s sesens $ 513151
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Explanation of Certaln Differences Between the Govemmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balance and the Government-Wide Statement of Activities
{Continued)

Another element of that reconciliation explains that "the issuance of long-term debt provides current
financial resources to govemmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of iong-term debt consumes
financial resources of governmenta! funds”. The details of this $1,733,477 difference are as follows:

Bonds payable ...t $ (1,765,000)

Add: prepayment of bonds payable at June 30, 2014... 160,000

Less: prepayment of bonds payable at June 30, 2015 ... (245,000)

Bond PromMilM . e ssnsser s ssmen s sssesarsss esssess 9,084
Deferred outflow Of reSOUNCES.......ccremmmicrissesarsrssmnasnnsenns {1,284)
Capital ieases payable..........ccvieinmmnemoa. 160,273
Compensated absences............co.cceverieeerecrmnerrnicraesemnnnane {69,350)
Landfill monitoring .............coeevvrinrinicsienseenstaneenn bertenmens 7,800
Net adjustment.............oiin s, $(1,7334717

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk, Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the
Town's deposits may not be retumed to it. The Town does not have a policy for custodial credit risk.

The Town maintains deposits at local financial institutions. At year end, the carrying amount of such
deposits was $5,417,730 while the bank balance was $5,522,168 of which $250 000 was covered by federal
depository insurance, $1,138,525 was uninsured, and $4,133,643 was collateralized. The Town also had
nonnegotiable ceriificates of deposit totaling $2,016,959 which were FDIC insured under the Certificate of
Deposit Account Registry Service (CDARS) at June 30, 2015. Rhode Island General Law 35-10.1 requires
that public deposits which are time deposits with maturities greater than 60 days be insured or pledged by
collateral. In addition, collateral must be insured or pledged for depository institutions, which do not meet
minimum capital standards. The Town of Charlestown was in compliance with this law at June 30, 2015.

The carrying value of the Town's cash and cash equivalents related to the Town's Statement of Net
Position (A-1) totals as follows:

Unrestricted cash deposits...........cc.ccmiciimmasanssmsseoenanenemeans 30,401,798
Restricted cash daposils..........c.ocvriormisivveiiresccsrssresssesensmrissssnsvstessresssssiessstoess 15,932
Pelly Cash..... et e e er e e e e e 2,825
Certificate of deposit, 0.23%, dated April 23, 2015, due July 23, 2015................... 1,008,403

Certificate of deposit, 0.23%, dated May 21, 2015, due August 20, 2015 ... 1,008,556
Total cash and cash equivalenis — (A-‘t) eeetreoreamnenriens

investments

The Town accounts for its investments in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, 'Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External- Investment Pools,” which requires that
investments be reported at fair value. Falr values are established by quoted market values. Unrealized gains
and losses from changes in fair value are recognized as investment income,
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Investments included in the fiduciary fund for the Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) trust fund
are valued af fair value. Securities traded on national exchanges are valued at the latest reported sales
prices.

Interest rate risk - The Town does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities
as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The Town
minimizes its exposure to interest rate risk by investing in short-term, highly liquid investments.

The Town does net hold long-term investments other than those managed by the trustee of the OPEB
trust fund. Managed investments are subject to interest rate risk. The risk associated with OPEB investments
is mitigated by evaluation of the portfolio performance by the Town's Trust Investment Consortium. The Town
receives monthly investment performance reports from the OPEB trust fund trustee and the Consortium meets
quarterly o evaluate the trust's activity in comparison to the investment performance policies set forth in the
CPEB trust investment policy statement.

Custodial Credit Risk, investments — The Town does not have a formal custodial credit risk policy.
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of financial institution fallure, the Town's investments may not
be returned or the Town will not be able to recover the value of its iInvestment or collateral securities that are in
the possession of an outside party.

Concentration of Credit Risk - At June 30, 2015, the Town's non-fiduciary fund investments consisted
entirely of a U.S. Series H Bond.

The OPEB trust fund (fiduciary fund) held the following investments, which represent five percent or
more of the net assets available for benefits at June 30, 2015:

SPDR S&P Midcap 400 ETF Trust, _
closed end equity mutual fund. ........... $219,299

Vanguard Intermediate - Term Bond
Index fund, fixed income mutual
FUNd ..., $404,780

Tempileton Institutional Foreign,
International equity mutual fund......... $202,123

in accordance with the Home Rule Charter of the Town, the responsibility for conducting investment
fransactions resides with the Town Treasurer after consuitation with the Town Administrator. As outlined in
the Town's investment manual, funds of the Town may be invested in the following instruments:

U.S. Treasury Bills

Short term obligations of U.S. Government agencies

Treasury bills and notes maturing within one (1) year

Insured or collateralized certificates of deposit

Repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Treasury securities

State Investment pools

Money market mutual funds whose portfolios consist of a majority of U.S. Government securities
or in broadly diversified money market instruments which are based in Rhode Island

A1/P1 rated commercial paper secured by an irrevocable line of credit

+ BBB (S&P) and higher rated bonds issued by corporations and utilities
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The OPEB trust fund trustee retains the discretion to invest and reinvest fund assets within the
guidelines of the OPEB trust fund's “Investment Policy Statement and Implementation Strategy”. The fund's
primary investment objective is providing consistent long-term growth of principal and income without undue
exposure fo risk. The investment objective is to achieve a total retum including appreciation which will satisfy
the financial needs of the Post Retirement Plan, protect and increase its long-term Inflation adjusted value,
and minimize short run volatility.

As of June 30, 2015, investments other than those included in the Fiduciary Fund included:

Falr Interest
Description Value Rate Maturity
Series HBond...........cconsieiiinisnvensnieinns $ 500 N/A N/A
Total Investmenis (A-1).......c.crcuu.... $ 600

Investments included in the Fiduciary Fund consisted of the following at June 30, 2016:

Percentage of
Fair Portfolio at Credit
Description Value Year End Maturity Rating
U.S. Government agencies: ,
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp... $ 258697 0.7% 7/30/19 AA+
Federal Farm Credit Bank .................. 25,851 0.7% 11122117 AA+
Federal Farm Credit Bank ...........cc..... 25,998 0.7% 11119118 AA#
Subtotal........cn i, __71.648 _21%
Corporate bonds:
Bank of America ......ccccrrceviiisninins 25412 0.7% 911115 A-
General Electric Capital Corp ............. 25,5156 0.7% &/21/15 AA+
General Electic .........ocrveverranreecenrcerrens 28,084 _0.8% 117121 AA+
Subtotal........ccinenmreeen _ 79011 _22%
Municipal bonds:
New Jersey Environmental ................. 27,732 0.7% 8/1119 AAA
New York, NY GO......cccceicmrecnianannnnne 26,518 0.7% 10/1/18 AA
Northborough, MA GO.......cccniiminn. 28,581 0.8% 10/156/18 Aa1
Pittsburgh, PA Urban Development.... - 25082 0.7% 5117 AA-
Subtotal......covrernerermisnirnensemens s __108.814 _29%
Corporate equity secutities ................. 1,928 910 62.0 {not applicable)  (not rated)
Equity mutual funds ...........coeecimivninnens 583,953 15.7% {not applicable)  (not rated)
Fixed income mutual funds................. 932,397 25.1% (not applicable) AA
Total investments ........................... $3.710631 100.0%
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TAXES RECEIVABLE

Taxes are assessed each December 31, and the levy thereon may be paid in full or quarterly, without
penalty, at the taxpayer's option. A 12% penalty is imposed for ail taxes in an overdue status.

Taxes are due in equal quarterly instaliments on August 1, November 1, February 1, and May 1 during
the fiscal year aithough they may be paid in full by September 1, at the option of the taxpayer.

Unpaid property taxes at June 30, 2015 include delinquent instaliments of the current and prior years.
The Town does not record interest earned on delinquent taxes until payment is received. Delinquent
installments which are not received within sixty days after the close of the fiscal year are recorded as
unavailable revenue.

Net property taxes levied for the fiscal year 2015 were based on an assessed value of approximately
$2,310,582,454 at December 31, 2013 and amounted to $23,095,033. Collections through June 30, 2015
amounted to $22,742,945 which represents 98% of the total tax levy. :

The Town recognizes property tax revenues in accordance with Section P70, *Property Taxes” of the
Codification of Governmental unting and Financial Reportin dards. Unpaid property taxes as of
June 30, 2015 of $1,136,962 are recorded as a receivable, net of an allowance for uncoliectible property taxes
of $431,700. Those net property taxes receivable which were not collected within the 80 days immediately
following June 30, 2015 are recorded as unavailable revenue and amounted to $592,059 at June 30, 2015,
Property taxes recognized as revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 (due to their collection within
the 60 days immediately following June 30, 2015) amounted to $1 13,203.

INTERGOVERNMENTAL RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES
Intergovernmental receivables and payables consisted of the following at June 30, 2015:

Due From Due To
Governmental activities:
State of Rhode Island:
Major funds:
General FUNG............cuoeeecconvaosecinseeeoesenesssese s $ 127,713 $24,230
Non-major FURS ...t 314,118
O ... 441,829 24,230
Federal government:
Major funds:
General Fund 2,724
NOD-MBJOr fUnds................cooroeeesseecemess oo 1,051,309
L 1,084,033 0

Total governmental activitles ...............eeeenveeeeesrreern ﬂ.ﬂu&
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS
General Information about the Pension Plan
Plan Description

The Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (MERS) ~ an agent multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan - provides certain retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
MERS was established under Rhode Island General Law and placed under the management of the
Employee’s Retirement System of Rhode Island (ERSRI) Board to provide retirement allowances to
employees of municipalities, housing authorities, water and sewer districts, and municipal police and fire
personnel that have elected to participate.  Benefit provisions are subject to amendment by the General
Assembly.

MERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financlal statements and required
supplementary information. This report may be obtained accessing the ERSRI website at www. ersni.orng.

Beneflits Provided

For general employees prior to June 30, 2012 the plan provided retirement benefits equal to 2% of a
member's final average salary multiplied by the number of years of total service up to a maximum of 75%.
Such benefits are available to members at least age 58 with 10 years of service or after 30 years of service at
any age. Benefits accrued at June 30, 2012 are protected under the Rhode Isiand Retirement Security Act
until it is exceeded by the member's full years of service credit, including service after June 30, 2012,
multiplied by the average of five consecutive years of compensation. Effective July 1, 2012 the retirement age
will mirror the Social Security Normal Retirement Age not to exceed age 67. Members will receive a benefit
accrual of 1.0% per year based on the five-year average compensation.

Joint and survivor options are available as well as the Service Retirement Allowance (SRA) Pius
option that provides for the payment of a larger benefit before the attainment of age sixty-two (62) and a
reduced amount thereafter. The reduced amount is equal to the benefit before age sixty-two (62), including
cost-of-living increases, minus the member's estimated sociai security benefit payable at age sbdy-two (62).

Prior to June 30, 2012 police and fire personnel may retire at age 55 if they have 10 years of service
or after 25 years of service at any age. An option may be elected to provide a 20 year service pension with a
benefit equal to 2.5% for each year of service up to a maximum of 75% for police and fire personnel. Benefits
are based on the average of the highest three consecutive years' earnings, exclusive of overtime.

The new retirement age will be 56 years old with 25 years of total service or for members with five
years of service but less than 25 yeare of service the new retirement age will mirror the Soclal Security Normal
Retirement Age not fo exceed 67. Police officers or firefighters, that are at least 45 years old, have 10 or more
years of contributing service and are eligible to retire prior to age 52 under the law in effect on June 30, 2012,
may retire at age 52,

As of June 30, 2012 members will continue to have a frozen benefit accrual of 2.0% per year for a
standard 25 year with any age and out plan; 2.5% for a standard 20 year with any age and out plan. Effective
July 1, 2012 the optional 20 and 25 year with retirement at any age plans have been eliminated. The benefit
accrual for all plans will be 2.0% per year based on the five-year average compensation, exclusive of
overtime. Police and fire employees may retire with a reduced pension benefit if they have 20 years of service
and are within five years of their retirement eligibility. The actuarially reduced benefit wili be calculated baged
on how close the member is to the eligibility date that is prescribed in the Rhode Island Retirement Security
Act.

The plan also provides survivor's benefits; and certain lump sum death benefits.
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
General information about the Pension Plan {(Continued)
Benefits Provided (Continued)

Plan members are vested after five years of service.

An optional cost-of-living provision may be elected for police and fire personnel and general
employees. The Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) has been suspended for any unit whose funding level is
less than 80%. The COLA provision can be reviewed in a five-year interval. When the funding level of a plan
exceeds 80% funded eligible retirees may receive a COLA annually effective on their date of retirement plus
one month.

The COLA will be calculated as the five (5) year smoothed investment rate of return less 5.50%, with
a 0.00% floor and a 4.00% cap. For police and fire units, COLA will be delayed until the later of age 55 or three
years after retirement. For general employee units, COLA will be delayed until the later of the Social Security
Normal Retirement Age or three years after retirement. The COLA will be applied to the first $25,000 of
benefits indexed annually.

The plan also provides nonservice-connected disability benefits after 5 years of service; service-
connected disability pensions with no minimum service requirement.

Employees covered by benefit terms

At the June 30, 2013 valuation date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

General Police
Emplovees Employees
Retirees and Beneficlaries 11 12
Inactive, Nonretired Members 12 3 .
Active Members 43 19
Total 66 34

Contributions

The amount of employee and employer contributions have been established under Rhode Island
General Law Chapter 45-21. General employees are required to contribute 2% of their salaries. Public safety
employees are required to contribute 8% of their salaries. The Town of Charlestown contributes at a rate of
covered employee payroll as determined by an independent actuary on an annual basis. The General
Assembly can amend the amount of these contribution requirements. The Town of Charlestown contributed
$218,126 in the year ended June 30, 2015 for general employees and $341,485 for public safety employees,
which was 10.1% and 24.4% of annual covered payroll, respectively.

Net Pension Liability (Asset)
The total pension liability was determined by actuarial valuations performed as of June 30, 2013 and

rolied forward to June 30, 2014, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in
the measurement.

(CONTINUED)
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
Net Pension Liability (Assst) (Continued)

Summary of Actuarial Assumptions Used in the Valuations to determine the Net Pension Liabllity
at the June 30, 2014 measurement date (June 30, 2013 valuation rolied forward to June 30, 2014)

Actuarial Cost Methed Entry Age Normal - the Individual Entry Age Actuarial Cost methodology is
used.

Amortization Method - Level Percent of Payroll - Closed

Equivalent Single Remaining 21 years at June 30, 2014

Amortization Period

. Actuarial Assumptions

Investment Rate of Retum 7.50%

Projected Salary Increases General Employees - 3.60% to 7.50% ; Police & Fire Employees -
4.00% to 14.00%

Inflation 2.75%

Mortality * Male Employees, MERS General and MERS P&F: 115% of RP-2000
Combined Healthy for Males with White Collar adjustments, projected with
Scale AA from 2000.

Female Employees, MERS General and MERS P&F: 85% of RP-2000
Combined Healthy for Females with White Collar adjustments, projected
with Scale AA from 2000.

. COLA Is equal to the average five-yeer fund asset performance (percent
Cost of Living Adjustments greater than 5.5% up to a meximum of 4% - the COLA is to be applied to)
the first $25,000 of benefits, indexed over time. COLA is delayed until the
latter of Social Security eligibility age or 3 years after retirement except for
MERS Police and Fire for which the COLA is delayed until the later of age
65 or 3 years after retirement.

A 2% COLA is assumed after January 1, 2014.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 valuation rolled forward to June 30, 2014 and
the calcuiation of the totai penslon llability at June 30, 2014 were consistent with the results of an actuarial
experience study performed as of June 30, 2013.

(CONTINUED)
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
Net Pension Liability (Assel) (Continued)

The long-term expected rate of return best-estimate on pension plan investments was determined
by the actuary using a building-block method. The actuary started by calculating best-estimate future
expected real rates of return (expected returns net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) for
each major asset class, based on forward-looking medium-term (10 year) capital market return assumptions
developed by eight investment consulting firms. The June 30, 2014 expected arithmetic returns over the
medium term by asset class as developed by the State Investment Commission's investment consultant,
which are generally consistent with the averages utilized by the actuary, are summarized in the following
table:

Target Medium-term
Asset Class allocation expected real rate of

return
Global Equity 38% 6.05%
Private Equity 7% 9.05%
Equlty Hedge funds 8% 4.75%
Absolute retum hedge 7% 2.95%
Real Return 14% 3.85%
Real Estate 8% 4.45%
Core Fixed 15% 0.25%
Cash 3% -0.50%

100%

These return assumptions are then weighted by the target asset allocation percentage, factoring in
correlation effects, to develop the overall medium-term expected rate of return best-estimate on an arithmetic
basis. To arrive at the long-term expected return estimate, the actuary adjusts the medium-term number to
reflect the longer 30-year time frame required for actuarial calculations. This process produces the actuarial
expected retum, which is based on a 30-year horizon, and can differ from the medium-term, 10-year-horizon
return expectations.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used fo measure the fotal pension liability of the plans was 7.5 percent. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members
will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from the employers will be made at
statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the otal pension fiability.

{CONTINUED)
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS {Continued)
Net Pension Liabllity {Asset) (Continued)

Changes In the Net Pensfon Liability {Asset) - General Employees
Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Llability | Plan Fiduciary Net Net Pension
Position Liability
Balances as of June 30, 2013 § 6,565,648 $ 5,563,850 $1,001,096
Changes for the Year
Service cost 188,698 188,608
Interest on the otal pension liability 491,136 491,138
Changes in benefits
Difference between expected and actual
experlence o
Changes in assumptions (56,184) (65,194)
Employer contributions 210,455 (210,455)
Employee contributions 50,998 (50,998)
Net investment income 860,548 (880,548) |-
Benefit payments, including employes refunds (223 ,033) (223,033)
Adrinistrative expense (5,388) 5,388
Other changss 3,872 (3,872)
Net changes 401,607 897,448 (495,842)
Balances as of June 30, 2014 § 6,967,253 $ 6,461,009 $ 506,154
Changes In the Net Pension Llabllity (Asset) - Poilce Employees
- Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Liabilty | Plan Fiduclary Net Net Pension
Position Liability
Balances as of June 30, 2013 $ 10,300,112 $7,201,201 $ 3,008,121
| Changes fot the Year
Service cost 237,878 237,878
Interest on the total pension liability 765,642 765,642
Changes in benefits
Difference between expected and actual
experience
Changes in assumptions {80,385) 80
_Empiloyer contributions 274,357 274,357)
Employee contributions 116,688 (118,608)
Net investment income . 1,101,220 {1,104,220)
Benefit payments, Including employes refunds (420,669) {420,989)
Administrative expense (6,696) 6,898 |-
Other changes . 1,708 {1,706)
| Net changes 502,168 1,086,118 (563,950)
Balances a8 of June 30, 2014 $ 10,802,278 $ 8,268,107 $2534,171
(CONTINUED)
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
Net Pension Liabllity (Asset) {Continued)

Sensitlvity of the Net Pension Liability to changes In the discount rate. The following presents the net
pension liability (asset) of the employers calculated using the discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well as what the
employers' net pension liability {asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-
point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate.

1.00% Decrease Current Discount 1.00 Increase
{6.5%) Rate (8.5%)
(7.5%)
General Employees $1,226,019 $ 506,154 $(213,711)
Police Employees $3,658,074 $2.534,171 $1,410,267

Pension plan fiduclary net poslition - detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued ERSRI financiat report.

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the employer recognized pension expense of $218,126 for the
general employees. The employer reported deferred outflows and infiows of resources related to pensions
from the following sources:

General Emplovees

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual
experience in the measurement of the
total pension liability 3 0 $ 0
Differences in assumptions 0 46,086
Net difference between projected and
actual eamings on pension plan
investments 0 353,510
Employer contributions subsequent to
measurement date 218,126 0
Total $218,126 £308,506

(CONTINUED)
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Penslon Expense and Deferred Outfiows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions (Continued)

Amounts. reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Net Deferred
Ending inflows of
June 30 Resources
2016 $ 97,488
2017 87,486
2018 97,486
2019 97,484
2020 9,108
Thereafter . b4s
Total § 399,506

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the employer recognized pension expense of $341,485 for the
police employees. The employer reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions from
the following sources:

Police Employees

Deferred Deferred
QOutflows of inflows of
Resources Resourcas

Differences between expected and actual
experience in the measurement of the

total pension Habliity $ 0 $ 0
Differences in assumptions 0 72,216
Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on pension plan

investmenis 0 449,910
Employer contributions subsequent to

measurement date 341,485 0

Total $341.485 $622.126

(CONTINUED)
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DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions (Continued)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Net Deferred
Ending Inflows of
June 30 Resources
2016 $120,646
2017 120,646
2018 120,648
2019 120,648
2020 8,169
Thereafter 31.371
Total $522.126
OTHER PENSION PLANS
Defined Contribution Plan

Employees participating in the defined benefit plan, as described above, also participate in a defined
contribution plan authorized by General Law Chapter 36-10.3. The defined contribution plan is established
under IRS section 401(a) and is administered by TIAA-CREF. Employees may choose among various
investment options available to plan participants. General employees contribute 5% of their annual covered
salary and employers contribute 1% of annual covered salary. Employee contributions are immediately vested
while employer contributions and any investment earnings thereon are vested after three years of contributory
service. Benefit terms and contributions required under the pian by both the employee and employer are
established by the General Laws, which are subject to amendment by the General Assembly.

As previously indicated in the disclosure of recently-enacted pension legislation, the employer
contribution for certain qualifying employees will increase slightly beginning in fiscal 20186.

Amounts In the defined contribution plan are available to participants in accordance with Internaf
Revenue Service guidelines for such plans. Pian members contributed $109,482 during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2016.

The Town of Charlestown recognized pension expense of $21,554, for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2015.

The System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for plans administered by the system. The report may be obtained at
http://www.ersri.org.

(CONTINUED)
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OTHER PENSION PLANS (Continued)
Town Funded Retirement Beneflts

During fiscal year 2015, the Town provided retirement benefits to the spouse of one former employee.
This pension is self-funded by the Town on a pay-as-you-go basis. The pension has a June 30, 1987 base
amount of $8,000 and is increased annually by 3%. Since the retiree predeceased his spouse, the surviving
spouse is entitled to 50% of the benefits for the remainder of the spouse's life or unti! the spouse remarries.
For the year ended June 30, 2015, the total cost to the Town for providing retirement benefits amounted to
$9,996.

INTERFUND BALANCES

interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2015 are as follows:

Due From Due To
Other Funds Other Funds
Governmential activities:
Major funds: .
GENELEl FUNG.......coiiieeiiciiiiesiisie i csss s sss e sy siss s snars s sassssssanassasspnassssnsiasen $1,044,366 $1,685,128
NON-MGJOF TUNAS ... st s s s msass e s sas s anta e 1.681.435 493,585
Total governmental 8CHVIHES.................c...coincrivccnmnmnmies s e 52725801 _ _ $2.178711
Business-type activities:
Major funds;
Resldential Collection Cenfer ...........vivimiiicreniicniicins essss sssseesmessms s e snsssssans $408,489
Coastal Pond Management ...............c.ovveenrinnsrerenosssanssesssrcsssasssssesssssssessnses 138601
Total business-type activities ..................ccoinccniniienns Ao L Q0 _$647.000
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

{a) Long-Term Liability Activity
2013 Series A Bonds

On August 22, 2013, the Town issued the 2013 Series A Bonds, with term bonds of $2,190,000 at rates
varying from 2.00% to 4.50%. The term bonds mature et various dates from July 1, 2014 through July 1, 2033.
Bond proceeds of $1,190,000 were used to finance the construction and furnishings of permanent beach structures
at Charlestown Beach and Blue Shufters Beach. The remaining $1,000,000 of bond proceeds are to be used for
financing affordable housing initiatives consistent with the approved Charlestown affordable housing plan.

(CONTINUED)
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)
{a) Long-Term Liability Activity (Continued)
2013 Series B Refunding Bonds

On August 22, 2013, the Town issued the 2013 Series B Refunding Bonds with term bonds of $1,520,000
at rates varying from 2.00% to 3.00%. The term bonds mature at varying dates from January 1, 2014 through
July 1, 2023.

The Town issued the 2013 Series B Refunding Bonds to fully defease the 2004 Series A General
Obligation Open Space Bonds. Upon delivery of the 2013 Series B Refunding Bonds, the Town established an
irrevocable escrow trust fund pursuant to a Refunding Trust Agreement between the Town and U.S. Bank National
Associetion. Under terms of the Refunding Trust Agreement, the proceeds of the 2013 Series B Refunding Bonds
were deposited into escrow funds established for each series of refunded bonds which were invested in investment
obligations maturing in amounts and bearing interest at rates sufficient to pay, when due, interest, and upon
maturity or prior redemption on the earliest availabie redemption date, the outstanding principal of the refunded
bonds. The escrow fund is pledged solely for the benefit of holders of the applicable series of refunded bonds.

The Town completed the August 22, 2013 refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next
ten years by $133,953 and to obtain an economic galn {difference between the present values of the old and new
debt service payments) of $30,350. The deferred charge is amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or
refunding debt.

Since those bonds have, in effect, been redeemed under the defeasance, they are no longsr outstanding
under the Town’s bond resolution and therefore, the liability for those bonds and related escrow funds are not
reflected in the June 30, 2015 financial statements.

The outstanding principal of the Town's defeased bonds is summarized below:

Defeased Bonds
Outstanding
Description June 30, 2015
2004 Series A Open Space Bonds $0

The 2004 Open Space Bonds were redeemed February 1, 2014,

2014 Serles A Bonds

On July 7, 2014, the Town issued the 2014 Series A Bonds, with term bonds of $2,000,000 at an
interest rate of 2.15%. The term bonds mature at various dates from July 15, 2015 through July 15, 2024.
Bonds proceeds of $2,000,000 were used to reimburse the General Fund for the purchase of approximately
78 acres of land known as the "Whalerock Property” (a.k.a. Charlestown Moraine Preserve) for preservation
of open space. ;

(CONTINUED)
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)
(a) Long-Term Liability Activity (Continued)

Long-term hiability activity for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
Long-term debt:
General obligation debt............... $3.485,000  $2,000,000 $ 245,000 $5,220,000 $425,000
Leases payable............cocooceereeenne 360,083 160,273 229.820 88,029
Subtotal.....cccnvevirninirerseeine 3,855,093 2,000,000 405,273 5,449,820 523,029
Plus: bond premium, net of
amortization ..........ceceeee 81715 8.084 72,631 )
Total long-term debt............. 39 8 2 0 414 357 5522 451 523,028
Other long-term llabliitles:
Compensated absences............. 897,468 473,742 404,392 966,818 155,000
Landfill monitoring costs.............. 124,800 7.800 117,000 7.800
Total other long-term
Habilities.................cccorvrvenens 1.022 268 473,742 412 162 1.083.818 162,800
Governmental activities.

Long-term liabilities...........cccccunnnn

Business-type activities:
Other long-term liabilities:

Compensated absences............. $ 8.027 § 4555 $ 3046 $ 8636 $ 0
Business-type activities:

Long-term Iiab“lﬁes """"""""""" M s M i g

All debt ef the govemmental activities is general obligaiion debt. Payments on all long-term debt and other
long-term liabilities that pertain to the Town’s governmental activities are made by the general fund.

(CONTINUED)
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9. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)
(b) Debt Maturity
At June 30, 2015, the Town had $3,000,000 of remaining authorized unissued bond authority,

Annual principal and interest requirements on long-term liabilities are as follows:

Year ending June 30: Principal Interest Total

$ 180,000 $ 91915 $ 271,915
430,000 136,391 566,391
435,000 127,460 562,460
435,000 118,355 553,350
440,000 108,337 548,337
445000 97,604 542,504
445,000 86,758 531,758
455,000 75,018 530,016
480,000 62,485 522,485
325,000 51,850 376,859
‘110,000 45,463 155,463
115,000 41,388 156,388
120,000 37,275 157,275
125,000 32,675 157,675
130,000 27,575 157,675
135,000 22275 157,275
140,000 16,425 156,425
145,000 10,012 155,012
150,000 3,375 153,376

At June 30, 2015, the Town was in compliance with Rhode Island General Law 45-12-2 which places
a 3% cap on the ratio of the Town's maximum aggregate indebtedness, excluding debt in the enterprise funds,
to taxable property.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the Town incurred the following interest expense:

2013 Series ABONG ..ot s et seeeseaens s e $ 72,600
2013 Series B bond (Refunding bond) 35,600
2014 Series A bond .. 21.500

TOLAI ...ttt et ree e ren e st s s et $120.700

(CONTINUED)
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- TOWN OF CHARLESTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)
(d) Deferred Outflows of Resources

When the Town refunds or advance refunds its bonds, it calculates the difference between the
reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt. The resulting accounting gain or loss is then
amortized over the remaining life of the refunding bonds, or the life of the new bonds, whichever is shorter.
The net unamortized excess of reacquisition price over the net carrying value of the defeased bonds is
recorded in deferred outflows of resources on the Statements of Net Position.

Excess of reacquisition price over net camying value of defeased bonds was as follows at
June 30, 2015:

Beginning balance of deferred outflows of resources...... $ 11,571

Fa¥e Lo {1107 o - O G 0

Reductions..........cccv e rse s sesseansassians (1,284)
Ending balance of deferred outflows of resources.. $ 10,287

(o) Capltal Loases

The Town has several lease agreements for financing the acquisition of various public works and
public safety equipment.

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Governmental Actlvities
Public Safety Public Works
Assets:
Vehicles and equipment............... $ 544,616 $ 1,503,539
Less: accumulated depreciation..... (367.357) (1,194.824)
Total............ccccovvvnrivinnnn, $ 177,259 $ 308715
Business-type Activities
Residential Recyeling Center
Assets:
Equipment............... cevicieeneennn, $31,025
Less: accumulated depreciation ..... 0
Total...........ceovenevveiiinnen, $31,025

The following schedule summarizes the future minimum lease payments under those caplital leases,
and the present value of the net minimum lease payments at June 30, 2015:

Fiscal year ending Governmental
June 30; Activities
2076 ... e e s eber s e e e maees $106,506
Lt OO S 70,703
2018 ittt b te et st ses et see e ser e eara 29,159
2079 ittt e eeeene e 20,620
2020 ...t ns s e e e s rasae e sne e 20,820

Total minimum lease payments ............................. 247,608 .

Less: amount representing interest................cvvveun. (17.788) .-
Present value of future minimum lease payments $220.820

(CONTINUED)
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10.

11.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Affordable Housing

In March 2013, the Town entered into a funding agreement with the Washington County Community
Development Corporation (WCCDC), South County Habitat for Humanity and the Church Community Housing
Corporation for the development of seven affordable housing units and with WCCDC for two housing projects
totaling thirty-five affordable units (24 senior and 11 family). The Town's total commitment for these projects is
$950,000, including $800,000 for land acquisition and $150,000 for preconstruction costs. The total cost of the
projects is currently estimated at $7,250,000 with additional funding expected from Community Development
Block Grants (CDBG), Rhode Island Housing HOME program funds, possible low-income housing tax credits
and the Housing Resources Commission's Bullding Homes Rhode Island program,

' In January 2013, the Town Council approved a resolution authorizing the issuance of a $41,000,000
general obligation bond previously approved by vote of the electorate on November 7, 20086 to finance affordable
housing inltiatives in the Town consistent with the Town's approved affordable housing plan. The proceseds of
this bond were issued and received in August 2013 as part of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2013A totaling
$2,190,000.

For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015, the Town has expended $410,720 for affordable housing land
acquisitions and $100,502 for preconstruction costs for the affordable housing projects. The Town has no
ownership rights in the land acquisitions or future housing units but the projects will meet the requirements of
affordable housing under the State’s 10% Affordable Housing mandate.

Grants

Under the terms of federal and state grants, periodic compliance audits by the grantors or their
representatives are required and, consequently, certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate, and
result in reimbursement to the grantor agencies. The amount, i any, of expenditures which may be disallowed
by the granting agencies could not be determined at this ime. Town officials believe that such disallowances, if
any, would not be material,

Litigation

The Town is a defendant in various lawsuits. Afthough the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable, in the opinion of the Town's attorneys, the resolution of these matters will not have a materially
adverse effect on the financial condition of the Town.

LANDFILL ENTERPRISE FUND - CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS

The Town accounts for ifs closure and postclosure care costs under GASE Statement No. 18. This
Statement is based on the October 9, 1991, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) rule, “Solid Waste
Disposal Facllity Criteria,” which establishes closure requirements for all municipal solid waste landfills
(MSWLF's) that receive solid waste after October 9, 1991. The EPA rule also establishes thirty-year postclosure
care reguirements for MSWLF's that accept solid waste after October 9, 1993, The effect of the EPA rule and
similar state laws or regulations is to obligate MSWLF owners and operators to perform certain closing functions
and posiclosure monitoring and maintenance functions as a condition for the right to operate the MSWLF in the
current period.

(CONTINUED)
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11.

12.

LANDFILL ENTERPRISE FUND - CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS (Continued)

State and federal laws and regulations require the Town to place a final cover on its landfill site when it
stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years
after closure, Although closure and postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfil
stops accepting waste, the Town reported a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating
expense in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The Town closed the
Landfill effective June 30, 2000. General Fund postciosure costs incurred during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2015 totaled $6,700. Postclosure monitoring costs were originally estimated at $50,000 to $100,000 per year.
Based upon revised estimates from an independent consultant, the costs should approximate $7,800 annually
for the remaining 15 years. These estimates are based on an independent evaluation of the cost to perform
postclosure monitoring. In fiscal year 2010, the Rhode Island Department of Environmental Management
approved a reduction in the scope of the Town’s postclosure monitoring activities resulting in the associated cost
reductions. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, deflation, changes in technology or changes in
applicable laws and regulations. Annual posiclosure monitoring costs are expected to be funded through
General Fund appropriations.

FUND EQUITY
{a) Fund Balance Constraints

The constraints on fund baiance as reported in aggregate in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
are detailed below according to fund balance classification.

Other Total
General Govemmental Governmental
Eund Funds Funds
Nonspendable:
Perpetual care................... $ 1,540 $ 1,540
Tax sale property ............... $ 224812 224612
Prepaid expenditures.......... 308,366 308,366
Restricted for:
General government.......... 164,354 217,867 382,221
Public safety....................... 90,554 90,554
Pubiic works..................... 6,500 6,500
Parks and recreation.......... 2,521 17.434 19,985
Community development ... 328,339 328,339
Education..............convvveennne 181,425 181,425
Capital projects................... 1,025,615 1,025,615
Employee severance
benefits ........ccoevnieremnee 417,519 417,519
Committed to:
Community development... 36,346 36,346
Parks and recreation.......... 103,372 103,372
Unassigned......................... 4,873,893 (100,888) 4,873,005
Total Fund Balances.... $6087765  $1901,604 $7.999 360
{CONTINUED)
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12, FUND EQUITY (Continued)

(®)

(c)

(d)

Net Position
Restriction of net position at June 30, 2015 was as follows:
Enterprise Funds:
Restriction for endOWMENL.............cc.cvivreririrsereeressessesss cessssessss $ 10,000
Fund Deficits
The following funds had cumulative deficits at June 30, 2015:
1% Gove ntal 8:

Open Space ACQUISIIONS..................cccoeereiriossisssnsesssersrsesssssseessesseen. $34,003
KIONATKE ROA.... ..ot sinsessseesemcsenssseessessersssssssssestsnsassessesssans $26,728
RI DEM ~ NInIGret ParK .................oocerisionemesmeerecssssetsesssssonssssssemsssesses $40,157

The deficits in the funds listed above will be funded by General Fund contributions.

Restatement

As a result of implementing GASB Statement No. 68 as discussed In Note 2, the Town restated its
governmental activities net position at July 1, 2014 from $26,717,258 to $22,101,854.

Net position as of July 1, 2014, as originally reported..................ouee......... $25,717,259
To record the effect of the net pension liability at July 1, 2014................ (4,100,117)
To record deferred outflows related to pensions ............c.eeecevevevvennnnnn, 484 812
Net position as of July 1, 2014, as restated...........coeeveeevererserereen, $22.101,954
{CONTINUED)
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CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases  Bafance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land ... e $ 9,370,910 $ 9,370,910
Construction-in-progress..............c.eeecvererereenn. 860789 $ 1137114 $ (1.538130) 450,763
Total capital assets not being depreciated _10231.679 _ 1137114  (1,538,130) _ 9.830,663
Other capital assets:
Buildings and improvements..........c...coeeemrereenneee. 8,694,618 59,034 8,753,652
Land improvements ............ccccmiinneninnnennienes 261,937 261,937
Equipment......cccoevince e enne s 892,590 53,186 (29,915) 915,861
Vehicles ... 2,987,812 154,353 (109,198) 3,032,967
Infrastructure........c.ccocconcvninncrrrrrrienen,. 44,5640458 1,835,762 46,476,220
Total other capital assets.................c..oeueeuen. 57377415 2202335 (138,113} 59.440837
Less: accumulated depreciation for;
Buildings and improvements.............cccoevvivvenees (2517479)  (228,428) (2,745,907)
Land improvements ........ccoevuvvenicrenvensecssenenens (19,109) (26,194) (45,303)
EQUIPMENL..........cc e strnesnressensarens (605,733) (79,718) 29,5660 (655,891)
VEhICIBS .....cociverrrriireerer s raens e e cansanesenses (2,009,049) (282,422) 109,188  (2,182,273)
Infrastructure. ..o (37.932,336) __ (871,051) (38,603,387)
Total accumulated depreciation.................... {43,083,706) {1,287.813) 138,768 (44,232 761)
Other capital assets, net......................ccoruueunn.... 14,293,709 914,522 (355) 15,207,876
Buslness-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
LaANG ... nresssi s bt $ 99,500 99,500
Total capital assefs not being depreciated .. 99500 § 0 $ 0 99,500
Other capital assets:
BUIIINGS......ccoooeceeeerreersnsiressnsseses e eemsserssarerens 18,550 18,550
Land improvements ..............cccmmenceennnceeconnnnns 113,684 113,684
Machinery and equipment..............cccoverveeernverenne. 284 863 {1.300) 283,563
Total other capital assets............................... 417,097 0 (1,300} 415,797
Less: accumulated depreciation for:
BUildings..........cocovinimsimr e e (18,548) (18,548)
Land improvements.............ccoeviennressesressnncnns {108,106) {7,579) (113,685)
Machinery and equipment..........c.coeceoeveeeerneenn. {200,224) {5.864) 1,300 (204.848)
Total accumulated depreciation.................... (324.948) {13,433} 1.300 (337.081)
Other capltal assets, net........................ooeeeeee.... 92 149 {13.433) 0 78,7186
Business-type activities capital assets, net....... § 1918649 $(13433) $ 0 $ 178216
(CONTINUED)
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13.

14.

15.

CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental activities:
General governmeNt............ccccoivceormsrerseressesmessenssrsceesmesarassarasies $ 60,528
PUBIIC SafBtY.....cccooiv ittt sttt 266,397
3 L= Ta (= o T 93,493
PUBIIC WOTKS....ccoeeeeeeeeeceecertirsseereencaniesseecsest e srsasssemesasaseene s ssmmssens e 843,662
EdUCALION ...t nicnisiniree s sn e vas s e ren srenesn s sresnsanerene 23,733
Total governmental activitios ..................cccecvevccnvcrsvcrccrnnnnee $1,267,813

Business-type activities:
Residential Collection Center............curuiiimrsims $ 7,093
Coastal Pond Management ..........c..cecniismmemsssmmsmannn. 5440
Total business type activitles......................ccovcvrinriniincnanes $13433

DEFERRED COMFPENSATION PLAN

The Town offers its municipal employees a deferred compensation plan established in accordance with
the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, available to all municipal employees, permits
the deferral of a portion of their salary. The deferred compensation is not available fo employses until
termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The Town Council is responsible for establishing or
amending the Plan's provisions and establishing or amending confribution requirements. The defined
contribution Plan Is currently administered by Vantagepoint.

The Town has implemented the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, Statement No. 32,
“Accounting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans." All assets and income of
the plan are held In trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. As a result, deferred
compensation investments and the respective liability have not been included in the Town’s financial statements
for the year ended June 30, 2015. Employees are aflowed to make contributions fo the Plan up to IRC limits,
currently $18,000 ($24,000 if age 50 or older). There is no Town required contribution and no additional
obligation incurred by the Town as a result of the employee contributions. Employee contributions to the Plan
for the year ended June 30, 2015 were $37,140. The Town has an obligation to prudently manage these
monies.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town of Charlestown is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; erors or omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. As a result, the Town
participates in a non-profit, public entity risk pool (Rhode Island Interiocal Rigsk Management Trust, Inc.) which
provides coverage for propertyfliability claims and workers’ compensation claims, Upon joining the Trust, the
Town signed a participation agreement, which outlines the rights and responsibilities of both the Trust and the
Town. The agreement states that for premiums paid by the Town, the Trust will assume financial responsibility
for the Town's losses up to the maximum amount of insurance purchased, minus the Town's deductible
amounts. The Trust provides this insurance coverage through a pooled, self-insurance mechanism which
includes reinsurance purchased by the Trust to protect against large, catastrophic claims above the losses the
Trust retains internally for payment from the pooled contributions of its Members. Under the participation
agreement, the Town is Insured for a maximum of $6,000,000 per occurrence. Settied claims resulting from
these risks have not exceeded the Trust Coverage in any of the past twenty fiscal years,

(CONTINUED)
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15.

16.

17.

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Trust is obligated to make payments on the Town’s behalf without any further obligation of the
Town, unless the Town’s applicable limit of liabllity was exhausted by the size of the loss or the nature of the
loss would fall outside the parameters of the Trust policy. As of June 30, 2015, the Town believes there is
minimal, if any, potential exposure for outstanding claims which would fall outside the parameter of the Trust

policy.

COMMUNITY SEPTIC LOAN PROGRAM

On June 9, 1999, the Town entered into an agreement with the Rhode island Clean Water Finance
Agency to finance the Town's Community Septic System Loan Program. The loan agreement provides the
Town with a non-restoring line-of-credit, The proceeds of the loan shall be used by the Town for the
establishment and operation of a Community Septic System Loan Program. The Program provides for the
Town to make loans to property owners of the Town for the repair or replacement of failed or failing septic
systems. The individual loans made to property owners shall be underwritten by the Town with the assistance of
the Rhode Island Housing Mortgage Finance Corporation (RIHMFC). RIHMFC, on behalf of the Town shall
perform ali administrative functions related to servicing the individual loans, including disbursing loans to
property owners and collecting and remitting borrower loan payments. The loan has a zero interest rate to the
Town and 4% to property owners. The Town is only required to make principal repayments in the event that
individual property owners defauit on their loans. As of June 30, 2015, the amount of loans outstanding under
this program was approximately $658,080.

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
Interfund fransfers for fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 are as foliows:
Transfers In Transfers Out

Governmental activities:
Mafor funds:
General FUNG ........cc.cocoriciriceninninreesnesessesmeensnssnssaesnsmsnintesnmsns ssnsnssnrossssransass $ 54444 $1,162,210
NON-MaJorfunds ....................eocorcnisireinr e incsrens e s rasssmarmsbesssasseenis 882,302 189,538
Total governmental activitles ...................cevcicenininecncrevscrcnennnn. $996,7468  $1.361.746
Business-type activitles:
Major funds:
Residential Collection Center.........ccccviiecrcenrrivinerrvesssiscenservesessssseasssesrass $ 15,000 _ 8% 0
Fiduciary funds: :
Other Post-Employment Benefit Trust FUNd.........cocccimencncinmancnnonen $400.000 $ 0

(CONTINUED)
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18.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Plan Description

The cost of post-employment heaith care benefits, like the cost of pension benefits, generally should be
associated with the periods in which the cost occurs, rather than in future years when it will be paid. The Town
adopted the requirements of GASB No. 45 during the year ended June 30, 2008, and recognizes the cost of
post-employment healthcare in the year when the employee services are rendered, reports the accumulated
liability from prior years, and provides information useful in assessing potential demands on the Town's future
cash flows.

The Town of Charlestown’s OPEB Plan is a single-employer defined benefit plan offering individual or
two-party (spousal) health Insurance to police retirees and retrees of the Charlestown Professional
Management Association (CPMA). Police and CPMA retirees vest for OPEB when they vest for pension
benefits.

Summary of Plan Provisions
Eligibility

Police:

A police-officer retiring, who is at least 60 vears old, or who has completed at least 20 years of service
regardless of age (25 years of service if hired on or after July 1, 2011) and eligible for pension benefits under the
State of Rhode Island, Optional Retirement for Members of Police Force and Firefighters, shall be eligible to
continue health insurance coverage for self and spouse.

CPMA:

Eligible for retirement at an individually determined age. This age is based on the members' soclai
security retirement age with a proportional downward adjustment based on years of service as of June 30, 2012,
The minimum retirement age Is 59.

Cost Sharing
Police:
Retiring on or after July 1, 2012 but bafore June 30, 2014:

Pre-65 85% Town-paid for retiree and spouse.

Post-85 85% Town-pald for retiree and spouse (BC Plan 65);
Medicare Part B reimbursement for retiree and spouse.

Retiring on or after July 1, 2014:
Pre-65 80% Town-paid for retiree and spouse.

Post-65 80% Town-paid for retiree and spouse (BC Plan 65);
Medicare Part B reimbursement for retiree and spouse.

(CONTINUED)
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18. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)

Summary of Plan Provisions (Continued)

Cost Sharing (Continued)
CPMA:
Hired prior to July 1, 1996:
Pre-65 80% Town-paid for retiree and spouse.
Post-65 80% Town-paid for retiree and spouse (BC Plan 65).
Hired on or after July 1, 1996:
Not eligible for Town-paid Post Retirement Health Benefits.

The latest actuarial valuation was performed as of July-1, 2015. The post-retirement plan does not
issue a stand-alone financial report.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policles and Plan Asset Matters

Basis of Accountin

In fiscal year 2008, the Town established an OPEB trust fund to fund future OPEB liabiliies. The OPEB
trust fund financial statements are prepared on the accruaf basis of accounting. Contributions are recognized
when due, pursuant to formal budgetary commitments and contractual requirements. Investment income is
recognized when earned and expenses (benefits and administration) are recognized when they are due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Classes of Employees Covered
As of July 1, 2015 (date of the last actuarial valuation) membership data consisted of the following:

CPMA Police Total
Active employees 3 20 23
Retirees and beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits <] 21 27
Total N 41 50

Benefit Provisions

The Town plan provides for medical benefits for all eligible Police and CPMA retirees and their spouses.
Benefits and contributions are established by contract and may be amended by union negofiations.
Administration costs are financed from investment earnings.

Employer Contributions

The Town's contributions are actuarially determined on a three-year cycle using the level percent
amortization method. Contributions made during fiscal year 2015 totafing $612,000 consist of the current year
general fund appropriation of $400,000 and $212,000 of general fund pay-as-you-go benefit payments and
implicit rate subsidies.

(CONTINUED)
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18. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued) '
Summary Financial information

The Other Post-Employment Benefit Trust summary financial information reported in the financial
statements is as follows:

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT TRUST FUND

JUNE 30, 2015
Assots:
Cash and cash equivalents...............coveceriereesnnine. $ 114,152
Investments, at falr value.............covceemrernsnsiinn 3.710.631
TOLA .......corvinreireeesesrenssmeiaisse s asnsaes s s ese e ssbastvmensess 3,824.783
LIGDIHTHES ........e.veeereeetrereriversreerre et ern s ene s anssnamantns 0
Net Position:
Held in trust for OPEB benefits............ccoueererraresaa $3.824 783
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT TRUST FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Additions:
Employer contribufions...............ccoemeneenscnsannians $ 400,000
Investment income, net of investment
EXPANSES ....eermrercrrsirssstesseesrsanisstsssnrnsstsne s ssonsans 90,178
Realized Investment gains.........c.cconmmiimeinini, 161,046
Unrealized investment losses.............cccecernceenicrnens (65,234)
Total additions...............cooveeenireveresersrresssnrrenees 585,990
Deductions:
BeNefitS.....ccoveerrinrasremserscererivarrrsersromsasrsnrressesesnmsanes 0
AAMINISLrAtioN.......ccoceecrvnirrceesrssrinrreeeessierseesermeens 0
Total dedUCtiONS...........c...ovvcvmrirerrisineremrsssssssmssns 0
Changes In Net Posltion ..................cccuivrinisnens 585,980
Net Position - July 1, 2014................eeeecrreereneene 3,238,793
Net Position - June 30, 2015 ................crneeenes $23.824 783
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18.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB} (Continued)
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The Town's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the
employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45.
The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each
year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table
shows the components of the Town's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actuatly contributed to the
plan, and changes in the Town's net OPEB obligation. These amounts are based upon an actuarial valuation

date of July 1, 2012.

Annual required contribution...............ccoerveienene. $ 508,000
Interest on net OPEB cbligation..............c..vccvn. {29,311)
Adjustment to annual required contribution ......... 33,473
Annual OPEB cost (expense)............cceereesmenne 510,162
Contributions made:
Employer confributions ............c..ccoeeeeneencecsnens 400,000
Retiree benefit payments............ccvcveevceerieenns 212,000
Total contributions made ...........ccccccveeerevvnneee 812,000
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation...... (101,838)
Net OPEB obligation, (asset) - July 1, 2014 ........ (390.815)
Net OPEB obligation, {asset) - June 30, 2015..... $(482 653)

The Town's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for 2013, 2014 and 2015 is ag follows:

Percentage of
Fiscal Year Annual Annual OPEB Net OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation/(Asset)
June 30, 2013 $528,757 104.0% $(361,797)
June 30, 2014 $508,982 105.7% $(380,815)
June 30, 2015 $510,162 120.0% $(492,653)

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the plan as of July 1, 2015 (the date of the most recent actuarial valuation) was
as follows:

B I(A-B)/C]
Actuarially Under
{A) Accrued Funded AAL as
Actuarial Actuarial Liability (AAL} {A-B) (A/B) {C) A Percentage
Valuation Value of Protected Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered
Dats Assels Upit Credit AAL AAL Ratio Payroll Payroli
July 1,201  $3,825,000 $6,141,000 $2,316,000 62.3% $1,650,000 140.3%
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18.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (Continued)
Funded Status and Funding Progress (Continued)

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions
about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded
status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as
actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The
schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to basic
financial statements, presents muitiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The accompanying schedules of employer contributions present trend information about the amounts
contributed to the plan by employers in comparison to the ARC, an amount that is actuarially determined in

.accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 43. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on

an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost for each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities
(er funding excess) over a period not fo exceed twenty years for Police and thirty years for CPMA

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and
plan members) and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit
costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The projection of benefits for financial reporting
purposes does not explicily incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on the
pattern of cost sharing between the employer and plan members In the future. Actuarlal calculations reflect &
long-term perspective. Consistent with the perspective, actuarial methods and assumptions used include
techniques that are designed to reduce shori-term volatility In actuarial accrued iiabilities and the actuarial value
of assets,

The annual OPEB cost was determined as part of the actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2012. Only assets
that have been contributed to the OPEB Trust are considered available for liabilities for purposes of the
vajuation. Assets are valued at fair market vaiue. Additional information and assumptions used as of the last
actuarial valuation {(July 1, 2015) is summarized below:

DiscountRate ............cccccoveveerinisnenn 7.50% (net of administrative expenses)
Actuarial Method...............ccconoo.....  Projected Unit Credit Cost Method
Amortization Method...........ccceeenrnnn. Level Percent
Amortization Growth ........................  3.00%
Amortization Period (decreasing)...... 30 years (CPMA)

20 years (Police)
Valuation TYpe.....ccococevernrccrnrnnenenee. Closed Group
Initial medical inflation rate................ 5.6%
Ultimate medical infiation rate.......... 4.6%
Years until ultimate inflation rate

reached.......cccovvececcnicrnvencrcenene,. 48 yoars
(CONTINUED)
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19.

PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOL
The Health Pool

The Town participates in a public entity risk pool through the Rhode Island Interiocal Risk Management
Trust (the Trust) entitied the Health Pool (the Pool), formerly known as The Govemnmental Health Group of
Rhode [sland, Inc. The Pool is part of a not-for-profit organization (the Trust) formed to provide programs of
liability, workers compensation, and health insurance coverage to Rhode Island cities, towns and other
governmental units. The Pool is gaverned by the Trust Board of Directors (Board).

Upon joining the Pool, members execute a member agreement. That document, pursuant to which the
Pool was established and operates, outlines the rights and responsibilities of both the members and the Pool.
Members of the Pool participate in the Pool's health insurance plan administered through the Trust and Blue
Cross Blue Shield of Rhode Island (BCBSRI).

Using the rate calculations prepared by BCBSRI, the Trust sets annual contribution rates for the
subscribers of each member for each program offered. The Pool agreement requires that those contribution
rates be set at a level sufficient, in the aggregate, to satisfy the funding requirements of the Pool. The
contributions of each member are used to pay for claims, reinsurance and all administrative expenses. The Pool
agreement provides for an annual independent audit of its financial statements.

A member's share of surplus or deficit is equal to the ratio of the member's subscribers {employees and
retirees) participating in the Pool's plan for each month of a policy year divided by the sum of all subscribers In
the Pool for the same pariod.

The Pool agreement provides the Trust's Board a discretionary, fully allocable assessment feature with
respect to specified clrcumstances. :

After it has been a member of the Pool for an initial three-year period, a member may withdraw from the
Pool by providing the Trust with 90 days notice; otherwise, liquidated damages would also be assessed at the
time of departure prior to the initial three-year period. The Trust may terminate a member's coverage for failure
fo pay amounts due.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, unaudited results indicate that the Pool generated $121,823,249 in
revenues and excess of revenues over expenses of $1,316,333. The Pool had $65,820,738 in total assets and
$40,700,704 in total equity as of June 30, 2015.

The Pool retains certain levels of insurance risk. Specific losses in excess of $1 miliion to a limit of $2
million are covered by a Health Excess Claims Stopless Account internal to the Trust that is funded by annual
Stopless Account payments from the Health Pool. As of June 30, 2015, the Pool's membership consisted of 44
cities, towns or other governmental units.

Separate financial statements are available at the Rl Interlocal Risk Management Trust, 501
Wampanoag Trail, Suite 301, East Providence, Rl 02915.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Shannock Village Cottages are being built as a Low and Moderate Income Housing project in
Charlestown. The Town of Charlestown has guaranteed the Washington County Community Development
Corporation $275,000 of bond funds towards the acquisition of the property. This amount is included in the
Town's Affordable Housing Acquisitions Specigl Revenue Fund at June 30, 2015. Washington County CDC has
received a loan from Rhode Island Housing in the amount of $245,000 while the appraised value of the land is
$325,000. Washington County CDC has asked the Town to provide a loan guarantee in the amount of $80,000
to ensure the properiy will not be sold to another party. On September 14, 201 5, the Town committed to the
project and approved the guarantee.

(CONCLUDED)
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SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

A. Total pension liabillty

1. Service Cost

2, Interest on the Total Pension Liabliity

3. Changes of benefit terms

4. Difference between expected and actual experience
of the Total Pension Liability

5. Changes of assumptions

6. Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions

7. Net change in total pension liabllity

8. Total pension liability — beginning

9. Total pension liability — ending (a)

B. Plan fiduciary net position

. Contributions — employer

. Contributions — employee

. Net investment income

- Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
. Pension Plan Administrative Expense

. Other

7. Net change in plan fiduciary net position-

8. Plan fiduciary net position — beginning

8. Plan fiduciary net position — ending (b)

DNnHWN

C. Net pension liability - ending (a) - (bl)

D. Plan fiduclary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability

E. Covered empioyee payroll -

F. Net pension lability as a percentage of covered payroll

General Employees
Year Ended
June 30, 2014

Police Employees
Year Ended
June 30, 2014

$ 188,698  § 237,878
491,136 765,642
0 0
0 0
(55,194) (80,385)
(223,033) (420,969)
401,607 502,166
6,565,646 10,300,112
6,967,253 10,802,276
210,455 274,357
50,998 116,698
860,546 1,101,220
(223,033) (420,969)
(5,389) (6,896)
3,872 1,706
867,449 1,066,116
5,563,650 7,201,991
6,461,099 8,268,107
$ 506,154  § 2,534,171
92.74% 76.54%
$ 2,087,371 $ 1,399,280
24.25% 181.11%
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SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Municipal Employees' Retirement System - General Employees

Flscal 2015
Actuarially determined confribution $ 218,126
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution . (218,126)
Contribution deficiency (excess) 3 0
Covered-employee payroll $ 2,155,294
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 10.12%

Municipal Employees’ Retirement System - Police Employees

Fiscal 2015
Actuarially determined contribution $ 341,485
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution {341,485)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ 0
Covered-employee payroll $ 1,398,956
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 24.41%

Notes:
1.) Employers participating in the Municipal Empioyee’'s Retirement System are required by Rl General Laws,
Section 45-21-42, to contribute an actuarially determined contribution rate each year.

2.) Schedule Is intended to show information for 10 years - additional years will be displayed as they become

avallable,
Notes to Schedule

Actuarial cost method - Entry age normal.

Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, open

Remaining amortization period 21 years

Inflatlon 2.75%

Salary Increases General Employees - 3.50% to 7.50%
Police & Fire Employees - 4.00% fo 14.00%

Investment rate of return 7.50%

Retirement age Varies depending on Years of Service and Age

Mortality Male Employees, MERS General and MERS P&F: 115% of
RP-2000 Combined Hezalthy for Males with White Collar
adjustments, profected with Scale AA from 2000.
Female Employees, MERS General and MERS P&F: 95% of
RP-2000 Combined Healthy for Femaltes with White Collar
adjustments, projected with Scale AA from 2000.
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TOWN OF CHARLESTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
(UNAUDITED)

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

OPEB Trust Plan

Actuarial (Overfunded) UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarlal Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Valuation Value Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Date of Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroli Payroll

June 30, (a) (b) {b-a) (af) {c) {{b-aj/c)

711/09 $ 502,000 $4,947,000 $4,445,000 10.2% Not Available N/A

71112 $1,794,000 $5,361,000 $3,687,000 33.4% $1,497,000 238.3%

711115 $3,825,000 $6.141,000 $2,316,000 62.3% $1,850,000 140.3%

Notes to the Schedule of Funding Progress

Changes affecting the July 1, 2015 actuarial valuation:

Medical age curves: Age curves were updated based on the analysis of the claims experience and
premium information provided for this valuation.

Medical inflation: The medical cost inflation trend used in this valuation was derived from the "Getzen
Model" established by the Soclety of Actuaries for developing long-term medical cost trends. The Getzen Mods|
was subsequently updated to reflect the latest economic growth factors, and an adjustment was made to reflect
the value of the expected excise tax payable In 2018 and later and the Affordable Care Act fees starting in 2014.
This assumption was revised to an initial Inflation rate of 5.30%, grading down to an ultimate inflation rate of

4.60% over a perlod of 70 years (Prior: an Initial Inflation rate of 5.80% graded down to an ultimate inflation rate
of 4.60% over a period of 49 years),

Pension: The valuation reflects the applicable changes in retirement eilgibility as part of the 2015
Settiement Agresment in conjunction with the Rhode island Retirement Security Act of 2011,

The combined effect of the above changes decreased the Accrued Liability by about $1.9 million and
decreased the Annual Contribution by about $250,000.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (NON GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

REVENUES:
General property taxes
intergovernmental
Investment income
Departmental
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Education
Recreation
Public health and assistance
Miscellaneous
Debt service:
Principal
interest and other costs
Capital:
Capital improvements
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers from fund balance
Transfers in
Transfers out
Landfill monitoring

Net other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other sources over
expenditures and other uses

Less: transfer from fund balance

Less: deficiency of revenues and other sources under expenditures and other
uses of funds classified with the General Fund for purposes of

GASB Statement No. 54
Fund balance, beginm’ng_ of year

Fund balance, end of year

Originally Final Actual Variance
Adopted Approved {Budgetary Positive
Budget Budget Basis) (Negative)
$ 23190,789 §$ 23,190,780 §$ 23,305,601 $ 204,812
2,071,084 2,071,984 2,073,261 1,277
5,000 5,000 7,874 2,874
1,103,972 1,103,972 1,115,498 11,524
26,371,745 26,371,745 26,592,232 220,487
1,580,257 1,583,732 1,500,157 83,575
2,563,623 2,653,623 2,380,053 163,570
1,706,427 1,700,480 1,534,358 166,122
14,351,417 14,351,417 14,312,928 38,489
585,198 585,198 528,581 56,617
420,310 420,310 420,171 139
2,636,920 2,632,802 2,546,328 86,566
435,000 435,000 160,000 275,000
319,015 . 318,015 305,027 13,988
803,578 448,952 421,329 25,623
25,391,745 25,028,619 24,118,930 509,889
880,000 1,343,126 2,473,302 1,130,176
64,400 64,400 64,400 0
50,000 50,000 54,444 4,444
{1,079,400) (1,442,5286) {1,448,110) {5,584)
{15,000) {15,000) (6,700} 8,300
{280,000) {1,343,126) (1,335,966) 7,160
0 0 1,137,336 § 1,137,336
{64,400)
(46,697)
5,071,526
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TQWN OF CHARLESTOWN, RHODE JSLAND
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF BUDGET ESTIMATES AND ACTUAL REVENUES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Orlginal Variance
and Final Actual Positive
Budget Revenues (Negative)
Property taxes:
Current and prior years $ 23,040,789 $ 23,185,033 $ 144244
Interest on delinquent taxes 150,000 210,568 60,568
Total property taxes 23,180,789 23,395,601 204,812
Intergovernmental revenues:
State of Rhode Island including:
Beach parking fees 23,000 18,244 (4,756)
Schoo) ald 1,716,895 1,708,666 (8,229)
Beverage/meals tax 117,928 141,836 23,908
Hotel tax 19,158 18,787 (371)
Public service corporation tax 98,381 96,784 (1,597)
Motor vehicle phaseout 42 696 44,361 1,665
DEM PILOT 6,668 7,323 657
Incentive aid 37,280 37,260 0
FEMA grant 10,000 0 {10,000)
Total intergovernmental revenues 2,071,984 2,073,261 1,277
Departmental revenues: =
Town Clerk:
Business licenses and fees 20,000 18,870 (1,130)
Non-business licenses and fees 5,500 9,332 3,832
Transfer stamps 180,000 177,479 {2,521)
Probate fees 13,000 17,468 4,468
Tax ceriificates 9,000 10,800 1,800
Recording fees 125,000 107,757 {17,243)
Building inspector 175,000 185,531 10,531
Municipal court 25,000 24,921 (79)
Police department 58,000 68,832 10,832
Recreation 77,950 78,785 1,845
Town beach parking and concessions 126,000 118,861 (7.03¢9)
Beach passes ' 85,000 81,826 (3,174)
Blue Shutters parking and concessions 162,000 164,033 12,033
Animal control 3,500 7,388 3,888
Ninigret Park 13,000 9,881 {(3,119)
Planning Board 4,000 4,110 110
Zoning Board and Review 4,000 3,785 {215)
Senior/Community Center 24,022 24,727 705
Other revenues 4,000 0 (4,000)
Total departmental revenues’ 1,103,872 1,115,496 11,524
Investment Income 5,000 7,874 2,874
{CONTINUED)
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IOWN OF CHARLESTOWN. RHODE ISLAND
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF BUDGET ESTIMATES AND ACTUAL REVENUES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Criginal Varlance
and Final Actual Positive
Budget Revenues (Negative)
Other financing sources: .
Transfers from fund balance 64,400 64,400 0
Transfers in 50,000 54,444 4,444
Total other financing sources 114,400 118,844 4,444
Total revenues and other financing scurces $ 26,486,145 $ 26,711,076 $ 224,931

(CONCLUDED)

78



64

(Q3INNILNOD)
2Z1'991 8SE'VES'| 8GEVES’| 08r'004'L {/+8'S) 2Zv'acs’L syJom apiqnd [ejo
LoL'P 289°001 889'001 Ly8'v0L {005'9) e L juawobeUBLY J8jemB]SEp
950’ 126151 1z6'l€) £86'0F1 £55 0V OFL uonensjuipy
196'2¢ 1z8'e9Z 128'e92 ¥8e’'15¢ ¥8E'1L6E spunai6 pue sbuip|ing olgnd
8ee'Ls 8L6'LED'L 8L6'1E0°') 9GZ'eoL’L 9GZ'eoL'| Jeugredsp Aemybiy
SSYIOM OHand
0.G'€9). £G60°06E'C £G0'06E'Z £29'e68'C [ £29'855'2 fsjes onqnd jezo
8.¢'s 02’28 022'es 8172'09 8¥2'09 ssaupaledaid [IND
9918 L1828 1¥2°Z8 200'16 100°LE [0JUCD [ty
9z6'ovl re'vse'e re'vse's 898'LOV'Z 898'L0¥'T swipedsp 89104
:Ayoges onqnd
G/5'e8 251°00G') $ /S1'005°) 2e1'e8S'L Gl¥'E 162'08S'L jusuwusanoh feraueh [eJo)
T4 FALY) ¢ls'e 008'9 . 008'9 - Hno3 [edioluniy
142's 89508 805°08 62816 6£8'L6 SIo
8zv's zZoL'glL zoL'sl 0es'oe 0£5'02 seaIuwWod pue ‘sapuabe ‘spieog
(258'2) L€0'L2 1€0'LE 641'8L 62181 N SUOKO
L0b £v6°/C £v6'sE 05€'82 pse'se [I2UNOD UMO |
185" ¥8L'L0) ¥eL'1L0l Gol'gll 69/'8Ll Jouueyd umoy
£v6'L 89%'601 891’601 P LLL L LLL Jojoefioo xej
08¢l £02'091 £02'091 oLZ'¥LL 656'T LG2LLL Jojoadsur Bulp|ing
809'S ovE'ShL ove'eil ¥56'g¥1 ySe'gil J0SSBSSE-XE L
IS ovE'vLL ave'vsL 168'%21 L6E'¥LL Jojesysiuipe UMo ]
090'c £69'081 £69'081 65.'681 g1s £ve'681 Janseal |
SLE'LL £zl'e0Z £Z1'80Z 8er'8L2 gev'sle MO0 UMOL
220'sl ¢ 80952 $ 8096z $ o0o0V'6LZ  $ ooL'sle S80IAIBS [B)jua))
JUDUILLIDADE) [elolivl)
{enebeN). siseg AEjebpng SISEg SIOJSUBI[ pue jebpng [UETITTEITY yebpng
8Aisod uo ssijsuell  Aejebpng o) seunjipuedx3] [eulq - jebpng =TT
souelep  pue saunjpusdx3 sjuslsnipy enoy
$£0Z ‘0£ INNr AIANI YVIA

SISV AYVLIIOANY - STUNLIANIIXT TVNLIV ONY SNOLLYRIdOYdY 40 TINAIFHIS

ONNd “TWHINTD



08

(Q3NNILLNOD)
6El LiL'OCk 0 LiL'Ogk 0LE'02ZF 0 0LE'02¥ eaug)sisse pue yreay ongnd fejo
0 000'c 000'¢ Qo0'e 000'c 22JoWWoY Jo Jsquieyd
0 0002 000'2 0002 0002 A191008 [R2UOISIH UMOISIEYD
0 000'2 000'2 000z 000'2 speled [euUowsy umalsapeyd
0 008 005 005 00S speled Aeq [euowsiy
0 Q5L 051 05. 0G. PUEjS| 8poyyY Jo siojEjiqeysy alIplip
0 174 052 052 052 ualpjiyd uopeod Lunod uojbulysepn
0 052 0s¢e 0S¢ 0s2e enfieen 182205 oyueYyD
o 005’ 005’ 00s'e 00s'e NVD Id
0 00s 00s 005 005 SuEjUBLIEG B
0 005'L 00s'lL 005"} 005°L Aunod yineg Jo Iejus) YiesH Isiuwspuny |
0 000°L 000°L 000°L 000°L S1aaJUnjoA [y uisyinosg
0 000°L 000'L 000°L 000‘L JaByg wiepp
6gl L9621 18621 ooL'El ooL'el aduelsIssy aland
0 000'C 000'z 0002 000°'2 Auno pnog o sousioIA BSSWOQ
0 000 000't 000'F 000't YllesH Jaary poopp
0 00s'c 005’c 00s'c 005’ UlesH [ejusiy aloyg ynag
0 0002 000°¢ 0002 000 S82IAeS UjjeaH SWOH SNA
0 008'091 008°991 008'001 008991 S30IA8S aduenguuy
0 pglL'zie 08L'ZLz 0oL'zle 091212 Aiesqr sj sso1n
:8oUEBISISSY pue yjjesl gnd
119'95 186'92% 0 185'8Z5 261696 0 BE1'G8S opeasdal (0}
ops'0L £26'%Z £26'¥C © gav'se BOY'GE yed RiBiuiN
685°'L) L6e'ss LBZ'68. 088'06 088'96 yoeag Uma |
aco'clL LibLL L2 .050'e8 060'68 yoeag siepnysg anig
£09'LL £89'301 £89'80L 88z'0¢L 98Z'0Z1 Jajue] AJlunWIosIoes
orZ'e A A eLZ'vrT L5’ 2ve c16'2PT uopeaidal uogedoied
suoneaIIoM
‘(eAREBBN)  Siseg Alejebpng sised Sigjsiel] pue . Jehpng sjuslpuawy .JeBpng
aanisod uosugjsuel]  Aegebpng o) saunppuadxg [eulq 1bpng - leunBuo
aoueleA  pue sainppuadxy sjusunsnipy lenoy
- SH0Z "0€ NN GIANT JVIA
SISVE AYVIIOANE - STUNLIANIJIXT TVILIV ANV SNOLLYINGQ¥DdY 40 ITNAIHIS
aNNd TY§INID
ONVISTIO0RY NMOIST 19VHD 30 NAAGT



L8

(@3INNIINOD)
£70'cZ 8Z¢'Leh 0 628’ LeF Z56'obF (9Z9'asE) 8/6°'¢08 syuewwecsdun teydes jeyo g
LLP'ET £89'Z1 £89°C1 00L'9g " 00L'9 000°0¢ wawweob |essuasy
0 £64'ST £61'62 £62'S¢ (z0z'12) 000'2p uofeaoal pue sy d
G15'01 £21'G6L £ZL'e61 8£9'502 {158'c0¢) 69¥'606 SHIOM 2lignd
{60¢'8) DEZ'281 0c€2'281 LZ¥'sll (209'2¢) 680°2L¢ aaljod
sweiboig syustuasosduy jenden
995'98 gze'ars'e 0 9ze'ors'e Z68°2E8'C (82Z0'v) 0Z6'9€9'2 snoauefaIsu [8jo}
{(rea'eel) ¥29'eEl ¥eo'etl 0 0 sjuewpnf pue swieD
L11'651 £92'GYL £92'Svl 08£'00¢ {0z 009'00€ saolMes |ebe]
(os9) 0:8'0¥ 0/8°0F 0zZ'ob . 0ee 000:0% Bupny
(zvo'02) cro'see Zro'sze 000'50¢ 000'50Z S0UBINSU] UMO].
(z62'1) 69€'91 69c'0l zi8'v1 (az0'p) 000'6L AousBuguoo pouncy
zos'lg 965'¥R6'L 255've6'1 02’220 02e'2L0'c sjyeusqg pue soueinsul sakodwy
ISNOBUBHBISHY
286°'89¢ 120°69¥ 0 120'G9¥ SLO¥G. 0 GLO'VE. B0/AJOS }qap 810,
Ws 1ze'sl) 1TE'SIL 208'G/) £08°G/1 sased) [eyde)
Lep'sL 00.'621 002'6Z1 Lbi'erl FLerL T T
000'Gle 000'094 000'09L 000'sEY 000'5EY fedpuud
:puog uonediqo jeisussy
FadAIRS 2q0(
687'8¢ 8Z8TLE L 89Z6'CIE vl LIP'LGE P 0 2P LGE PL Joulsiq jooyos reuoifiey oyueyD,
suopesnpy
(BAebaN]  siseq aﬂm. Sbpng . SIBISUEI] pue 1°bpng ST VT 8bpng
aAlIsod uo sigysuell  Aiegabpng o) senypusdxg [euld4 196png lewbuo
foleuep  puesaimipuadxy sjuswisnlpy - empoy
SLOZ ‘08 INNC GIGNT MYIA
SISVE ANVL139aNg - SIUNLIANIIX TYNLOY ONY SNOILYINDONdY 40 FINUIHIS
GNNd TYY3INIS
ONVIST300RY NMOIST T8YHD 30 NACL



(%

(@3an1oNO0D)

SoP'ZL6 $ Obi'ciS'sTE O $ Ovl'els'se$ SvlL'osk'oz$ O $ Gpl'08k'OC $ sasnypuadxo j8)oL
002’8 004'9 0 00.'9 000'GL 0 000'G1 10tj30 [B]0 |
00¢'8 00.'9 00.'Q 000°GL 000G} Bupoyuow [ypuen
IRyl
{185'G) oLL'SPP'L 0 oLL'SHF | 9Z5'ehp'L 921'coe 00¥'610'L o sigjsue) [E301
000°Gl 000's1 000'G1L 000'GL 19U UOIDS|[0] [BHUBPISSY - SPUNY esudielug
0 000’001 000'00L 000'004 000°00} soueusjuely [epdeD umo) - spuny Joslosd jende)
(sLe's) gLe'oz sLe'oz 000°G1L .000'stL 0 yed wibiuiN W3 1 - spuny joefoid jended
0 929'962 929'06¢ 929'962 929'96C 0 uogeun3

abueLDS|q JRIeMULIOLS - SPUNY SNUSARI [RIDadS

0 000's¥ 000'st 000'St 000'St 0 Buip|ing supuesend 0oV - Spunj snuaadl jeloadg
0 005'S 005’9 00g'9 005'9 0 Bupss ) Jejemo)SEAA - SPUN} SNUBAL |e10adg
(e) £ e 0 0 uspien) Aunwiwlos - spunj anusas. [e1sdg
(e£2) gez ££2 0 0 sajjiligesi( Uo UOISSIULIOY - SPUN} 8nusAal [el1oadg
) 00F'F9 00+'+9 00¥'+9 00%'v9 se9 |eba 1o} aAesaY - SPUNy GNUsAs. |e18ds
0 000°se 000'se 000°cE 000°6E ezis Buiuue|d saisusysidluog - spury snuaasi [elveds
0 000'052 000'052 000'05E 000'052 uolieasssal ] Ljoreg pue puog - spunj enueasl [e1edg
0 000'00t 00000 000'00¥ 000’00 BAI9S9Y areD YjeaH - spuny anusas: [elaadg
4] 000'051 000'0G1 000051 000'0S1 SJUBISNSS 10} DAIESIY - SPUNY BnuUsAal [eioedg
] 000's9 000'59 000'59 000'69 uoneneAsy - Spun) enueaal [ewadg
. no Sigjsuedf
:sosn Buroueuyy BPRO
[GAEbSN] Siseg Aejebphg SISEg SI9JSUEI] pue P6png ST I jebpng
aApIsod uosigjsuel]  Aeebpng o} saunppuadxg {eul yebpng jleulbud
asueles,  pue saimupuedxy susunsnipy enoy .

SI0Z ‘08 INNT GIANT YVIA
SISYa AYVLI9aNd - SFANLIANTIXT TVNLOV ANV SNOLLVINdONddY S0 FTINATFHIS

annd TY83INTO

NM NM



ZOWN OF CHARLESTOWN, RHODE ISLAND

NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2015

BUDGETARY TO GAAP BASIS RECONCILIATION

The following reconciliation summarizes the differences for the Town's General Fund betwsen budgetary and
GAAP basis for the year ended June 30, 2015:

Excess of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses
(Non-CAAP Budgetary Basis)...........c.cccivereuvmenereivmsieinsninsnasessassssssss tesssssssrsssesesens $ 1,137,336

Reappropriated FUNd DAIANGE................ccovrvrecrevee e e seeeeesessostseeseeeeesteeeeeeeseseseeeeeso (64,400)

Deficiency of revenues and other sources under expenditures and other uses of
funds ciassified with the General Fund for purposes of GASB Statement No. 54....... (46.697)

Excess of revenues and other sources over expenditures and other uses (GAAP).... $.1.026.239
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Town Of Charlestown

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditure for particular purposes,

Senilor Community Activities

This fund accounts for revenues and expenses related to activities at the
Senlor/iCommunity Center.

Police Grants - JAG

The purpose of this fund Is to account for police grants recelved from the Governor's
Justice Commission.

MEDS Grant - Rl Dept. of Health

The purpose of this fund is to account for a grant received from the Ri Department of
Health to develop and maintaln a Medical Emergency Distributions System (MEDS) Point of
Dispensing (POD) Plan. The Town will be required to develop and maintain a MEDS POD plan
that describes how the Town will activate and execute the mass distribution of antibiotics or
mass administration of a vaccine.

Frisbee Golf Course

This fund accounts for the donations and expenses in establishing a Frisbee Golf
Course at Ninigret Park.

School Impact Fees

This fund accounts for fees collected from new construction to be used for school
facilities.

Friends of Ninigret

This fund wilt account for the donations being made to the improvements at Ninigret
Park.

Hazard Mitigation

This fund accounts for the expenditures in updating the Town's Hazard Mitigation
Plan.

Operation Blue Riptide

This fund accounts for grant revenues and expenses associated with the police
department’s efforts to control driving under the influence of alcohol.

(CONTINUED)




Town Of Charlestown

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Flagpole Gardens Accessible Playground

Funds are being raised to-build a handicap accessible playground in Ninigret Park.
This fund is tracking the funds as they are being deposited and will eventually account for
expenses to bulld the playground..

Animal Spaying/Neutering

This fund accounts for surcharges collected on dog licenses issued by the Town to
fund low-cost spay/neuter programs.

Nlnigretf Park Fund

This fund accounts for revenues generated at the Ninigret Park recreational facility.

Bicentennial Fund -

This fund accounts for donations which are restricted to cover costs associated with
the Town's next Bicentennial Celebration.

Affordable Housing - Acqulsitions
This fund wili account for the acqulsition grants for affordable housing.
FEMA
- -'I"hlis;funi:l: a;:éouhté for storm related expenditures and reimbursements from FEMA.

Developer Bond Deposits

This fund accounts for activity related to construction deposits held by the Town.

Open Space Fees

This fund accounts for fees charged to developers which are to be set aslde for future
open space and recreational facilitles.

Charlestown Commimi;z Garden

. This .f‘ui‘i;:l'accounts for the donations and expenses in establishing a Community
Garden at Ninigret Park.

Naval Airfleld Memorial

This fund accounts for donations received by the Town which will be used to build a
monument at the old Naval Alr Base In the Town of Charlestown.

(CONTINUED)




Town Of Charlestown

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED)
Police Forfeiture

The Police Forfeiture Fund accounts for funds received from drug related indictments.

Municipal Planning

The purpose of this fund is to account for monies set-aside for municipal planning.

Affordable Housing initiatives

This fund will account for the Initiatlve grants for affordable housing.

Birthday Commitiee

This fund accounts for donations received by the Town which will be used for the
Town's Centennial celebrations.

CDBG - Disaster Recovery

This fund accounts for funds expended for the various projects approved by the
Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery.

Commission on Disabillties

This fund accounts for the expenses related to making two polling places handicap
accessible.

Community Development Block Grants
This fund accounts for funds obtained through the Community Development Block

Grant Program and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, which are
restricted for specific purposes or programs.

Police Evidence Property

This fund accounts for any cash evidence that is confiscated during an arrest. -
Historical and Vital Records

This fund is to account for fees collected for the filing of state documents and

recording fees. The revenue recelved is to be used for the preservation of public records of
historical value maintained by the municipal clerk.

(CONTINUED)




Town Of Charlestown

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Ninigret Dog Park

This fund accounts for donations to create a dog park at Ninigret Park.

Roof Drainage System Performance Bond

This fund tracks the bonds deposited by the Town to ensure that the drainage system
Is properly constructed.

Taguonck's Treasures

This fund accounts for funds raised to purchase handicap accessible playground
equipment and the associated expenditures.

Comprehensive Planning Grant

The Planning and Land Use Grant fund accounts for monies received from the state to
be used by the Town in preparation of its comprehensive plans.

Speclal Donations

This fund accounts for donations recelved from varlous sources to support specific
programs such as Kiducation.

(CONTINUED)




Town Of Charlestown

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

CAPITAL PROJE UNDS

Capital Project funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major
capltal facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds.

Open Space Acquisitions

This fund accounts for costs related to the purchase of open space land.
Klondike Road

This fund accounts for the cost associated with reconstructing Klondike Road.

Asphait Resurfacing

This fund accounts for the expenses associated with the cost to resurface Town roads,

Stormwater Ellmination Project

This fund will account for the cost associated with the elimination of stormwater
discharge into Alan's Cove,

RI DEM - Ninigret Park

This fund accounts for expenses to renovate the bathrooms at Ninigret Park and fo
Install composting tollets and a pavilion In the Park.

Town Capital Maintenance Fund

This fund was created to reserve funds for Town-wide capital maintenance, projects
and renovations.

Columbia Heights Streetscapes Enhancements

This fund will account for grant monies received for the revitallzation plan for the
Columbla Heights neighborhood.

DPW Road Engineering
This fund accounts for costs related to road engineering.
Beach Pavilions

This fund accounts for the construction of pavilions at Town Beach and Blue Shutters
Beach.

(CONTINUED)




Town Of Charlestown

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS (CONTINUED)
Web Based GIS

This fund will account for the cost to purchase a web based GIS system,

Pond and Beach Preservation

This fund accounts for the expenditures associated with dredging of the ponds. The
Town has set aside funds and the State will be providing funds for this project.

(CONTINUED)




Town Of Charlestown

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

PERMANENT FUNDS
The Permanent Funds are used to account for assets held by the Town pursuant to a
trust agreement. The principal portion of these funds must remain Intact, but the interest may
be used to achieve the objective of the funds.
Zenlis Elils Trust
The Zenis Ellis Fund accounts for monles provided by a private donor for the benefit of

the Narragansett Indian Sunday School of Charlestown. The principal amount of the gift Is to
be maintained intact and invested. Investment earnings are given to the Sunday School.

Cemetery Fund

The Cemetery Fund accounts for monies provided by individuals to be used for the
perpetual care of Town cemeteries.

(CONCLUDED)
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GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Town Council
Chartestown, Rhode island

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Town of Charlestown, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which coilectively comprise the Town of Charlestown's basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 23, 2015,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town of
Charlestown’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of
Charlestown’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Town of Charlestown's internal control.

A deficiency In internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal contro!
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Glven these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in Internal control that we consider to be materiaf weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Cayer Caccia, LLP | Certified Public Accountants and Business Consultants 5
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Charlestown’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

December 23, 2015 Cﬁqm Coccca, LLP
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